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Speech of the Chairman of the Board of Directors
Dear shareholders,

On behalf of my fellow members of the Board of Directors and on my own behalf, I
am pleased to place in your hands the twenty-ninth annual report, which includes the
financial statements for the year ending 31/12/2023 and the Company’s plan and
achievements for the coming years.

The year 2023 was an exceptional year by all standards, as the Company was able to
achieve positive results for the year 2023, both in terms of increased revenues and
reduced costs, which led to achieving record profits despite all the obstacles that
affected the Company and the increase in raw materials. A net profit of 4,279,019
Jordanian Dinars was not achieved by the Company several years ago.

All of these achievements were achieved due to the efforts of the executive
management and all the Company’s employees, who deserve all thanks and gratitude
for their effort throughout the year. We look forward to continuing to establish and
develop long-term relationships with our customers and suppliers, and we pay great
attention to providing distinguished service to our customers so that the Company
remains one of the first concrete companies in this field, and we hope that the coming
year will be a year of goodness, peace and blessings for our country, Jordan, under the
leadership of our beloved King Abdullah II bin Al Hussein and his Crown Prince, His
Highness Prince Al Hussein bin Abdullah II, may God protect them.

Dear shareholders,,,

On behalf of the Board of Directors and on my own behalf, I extend my thanks to the
Securities Commission, the Companies Control Department, and the shareholders. I
also thank all colleagues working in the various branches of the Company for their
performance and continuous giving to enhance the Company’s achievements, raise its
efficiency, and advance it towards excellence forever under the patronage of the
Hashemite Banner under the leadership of His Majesty King Abdullah II.

Peace, mercy and blessings of God be upon you,

Bassem Jamil Issa Mu'asher
Chairman of Board of Directors



Report of the Board of Directors to the twenty-ninth Ordinary general assembly
At the annual meeting held on Wednesday, 27/03/2024

Dear shareholders,
The Board of Directors is pleased to present its twenty-ninth report, stating in
accordance with the Companies Law:

Main company activities:

The company was established in 1995. Today, thank God, it is the leading company in
Jordan in the ready-mixed concrete industry in terms of service, quality and
production capacity.

The company's main headquarters is located in Amman/ Bayader Wadi Al-Seer/
Industrial Area.

P.O. Box: 851602 Amman 11185 Jordan

Tel: 06-5858110

Website: www.kingdomconcrete.jo

Location Product Employee

15+ 20+ 300+



http://www.kingdomconcrete.jo/




The Company's geographical locations, number of employees and their qualifications:

No. of Branch
employees
170 Al-Bayader
6 Dead Sea
= 9 Aqgaba
\ 24 Ramtha
> 21 Zarqa
- 27 Sahib
>y e X > 4 Al-Qastal
/ 9 Azraq
. : 29 Shafa Badran
L o ® 3 Ma'an
a4 9 Karak
e ¢ 6 Mafraq
< 7 Hosen
3 Potash
2 Potash 2
v 329 Total
i
aSilooll -8
Academic qualifications: Training courses:
Qualifications: | Number of Course title Number of
employees employees
Master 2 Purchasing and  warehouse 5
management course using
artificial intelligence
Bachelor 127 Jordanian Certified Public 1
Accountant (JCPA) course
Diploma 11 ISO 9001 quality management 1
system
Tawjihi and 189 Public safety course 1
below
Total 329 Total 8

Internal training courses are also conducted for employees on the Company’s work,
administrative and financial matters, and special training courses for concrete pumps
and general maintenance of machines and equipment.

Volume of capital investment - in Dinars

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

26.793.192 25.687.497 27.062.307 28.055.434 27.167.670




1. The Company’s subsidiaries:
The companies below are wholly owned by the Ready Mixed Concrete and Construction Supplies Company:

D156 G Registration | Status | Establishment | Capital No. of Activity
No. date Dinar | employees
- Amman 15823 Limited 24/2/2008 30000 1 Import and export,
". nw Company Liability general trade, trade in
R LAl A ¢ drant nged for the construction
ama n Supply of equipment, spare
Construction parts and oils.

and Heavy

Machinery
e Concrete 9053 Limited 24/7/2002 80000 28 Manufacture and
concaeTe TecHnoLo6y | Technology Liability trade of additives for
Company concrete, design and

implementation of
post-tensioned

concrete works,
manufacture and trade
of waterproofing and
building  materials,
repair and
rehabilitation of
buildings, supply and
implementation of
decorative  concrete,
supply and
implementation of
foam concrete.




Arab 12834 Limited 3/9/2004 100000 2 Trading in heavy
a Chinese Liability equipment of all
o L. Company kinds, spare parts, and
d._!.l.!.l.ﬂ" d.!..!j.oJl for Renting renting  equipment,

= : and Selling cranes, and weights.
Heavy Agent of the Chinese
Equipment Sany company for
heavy equipment and

trucks.
United 252 Limited 18/12/2004 800000 13 Production and sale
Ready Mix Liability of ready-mix concrete
Concrete of all types
Company
URMC

Masafat Housing Company 28387 Limited 257712017 30000 1 The company's main
Liability activity:  purchasing

lands and
constructing
residential apartments

-10-




Names of the members of the Board of Directors and an introductory

summary of each of them:
Board of Directors members

Su},lall Jamil Mr. Bassem Jamil Issa Al- Chairman of Board of
Mu'asher and . .
Mu'asher Directors
Brothers Company
His Excellency Sheikh Saud ) )
Abdul Aziz Abdullah AL | ¥ 1¢¢ Chairman of Board of
. Directors
Sulaiman
Until 12/31/2023: Engineer
Arabian Cement Mu'taz Qusay Al-Azzawi .
Bahrain Holding | From 1/1/2024 Mr. Turki bin | D0rd of Directors member
Company Abdullah bin Abdulaziz AL
Rajhi
Mr. Mu'taz Muhammad .
Mortada Abdel Hamid Board of Directors member
Mortada
Jawdat Al-Alami & Khalil Makram ‘Khahl Al- Board of Directors member
Brothers Company Alami

Engineer Raja Khalil Ibrahim Al-Alami

Board of Directors member /
Chief Executive Officer

Engineer Makram Khalil Ibrahim Al-Alami

Board of Directors member

Dr. Marwan Jamil Issa Mu'asher

Board of Directors member

Engineer Anas Mahmoud Ahmed Al-Chalabi

Board of Directors member

Mr. Sohrab Rakad Naji Owais

Board of Directors member

-11-




Biography of Board of Directors members
1. Mr. Bassem Jamil Issa Al-Mu'asher
Chairman of Board of Directors and represents Suhail Mu'asher and Brothers

Company
Date of | 2/5/1995 Academic Bachelor of Business
membership: qualification: | Administration
Year of birth: 1958 Year of | 1979
graduation:
Nationality: Jordanian University: Towson  University -
United States

Biography overview:

- Chairman

of

the Board of

Directors of the Premier Business
and Projects CO.LTD.

- Member of the Board of Directors
of the Arab International Hotels

Company.

- Member of the Board of Directors of

the
Company.

Jordanian

Plum Factories

2. His Excellency Sheikh Saud Abdul Aziz Abdullah Al-Sulaiman
Vice Chairman of Board of Directors, representing Arabian Cement Bahrain Holding

Company.
Date of | 8/3/2008 Academic Bachelor's degree in
membership: qualification: | economics and finance
Year of birth: 1941 Year of | 1987
graduation:
Nationality: Saudi University: New York University -
United States

Biography overview:
- Member of the Board of Directors of
the Arab Cement Company since

1997.

- Member of the Insurance Committee

of the

Jeddah Chamber of

Commerce and Industry.

Member of the Board of Directors of
Bin Sulaiman Holding Company,
working with the Sulaiman Group
since 1987.

Member of the Financial Committee
of Sadaq Company.

Partner, Vice Chairman of Board of
Directors, and Managing Director of
many companies, including Zahran
Contracting Company, Mozn
Tourism Company, Rolaco
Company, and Iron Manufacturing
Company Limited.
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3. Engineer Makram Khalil Ibrahim Al-Alami

Board of Directors member

Date of | 2/5/1995 Academic bachelor of Civil
membership: qualification: | Engineering
Year of Birth: 1952 Year of | 1978
graduation:
Nationality: Jordanian University: Purdue  University -
United States

Biography overview:

- General Manager and Partner in an
exchange company from 1979-
2005.

- Chairman of the Board of
Directors of the Ready Mixed
Concrete and Construction
Supplies Company since its
establishment in 1995 -2019.

- General Manager of Masafat
Specialized Transport Company

Chairman of the Board of Directors of
Masafat Specialized Transport
Company since its establishment in
2006 to date.

Member of the Board of Directors of
Assas Concrete Industries Company
since its establishment in 2007 to date.

4. Engineer Raja Khalil Ibrahim Al-Alami
Board of Directors member and Chief Executive Officer of the company.

Date of | 2/5/1995 Academic bachelor of  Civil
membership: qualification: Engineering
Year of Birth: 1952 Year of | 1974
graduation:
Nationality: Jordanian University: University of
Birmingham — Britain

Biography overview:

- Engineer at the Civil Aviation
Authority from 1976 to 1979.

- Parther in an engineering
consulting office from 1979 to
date.

Member of the Board of Directors of
Masafat Specialized Transport
Company since its establishment in
2006 to date.

Chairman of the Board of Directors of
Assas Concrete Industries Company
since its establishment in 2007 to date.
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5. Mr. Khalil Makram Khalil Al-Alami
Board of Directors member, representing Jawdat Al-Alami & Brothers

Company
Date of | 20/7/2008 Academic Master of Business
membership: qualification: Administration
Year of Birth: 1977 Year of | 1999
graduation:
Nationality: Jordanian University: Purdue University -
United States

Biography overview:

- Member of the Board of Directors
of Assas Concrete Industries
Company.

6. Engineer Anas Mahmoud Ahmed Al-Chalabi
Board of Directors member

Date of | 2/5/2009 Academic Master's  degree  in
membership: qualification: | Mechanical Engineering
Year of Birth: 1952 Year of | 1979
graduation:
Nationality: Canadian University: University of London —
Britain
Biography overview:
- He worked in the field of - Member of the Board of Directors of
petroleum investments in the Assas Concrete Industries Company.

United Arab Emirates.

- Member of the Board of Directors
of Masafat Specialized Transport
Company since its founding in
2006 to date.
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7. Mr. Sohrab Rakad Naji Owais

Board of Directors member

Date of | 6/5/2021 Academic Master's degree in
membership: qualification: finance
Year of Birth: 1943 Year of | 1994
graduation:
Nationality: Jordanian University: University of Jordan

Biography overview:

Director of the Investment and
Financial Brokerage Department at
the Bank of Jordan 07/1997 until
31/12/2006.

Financial advisor, financial broker,
and investment trustee certified by
the Securities Commission.
Member of the Board of Directors
of the Syndicate of Financial
Services Companies from its
establishment until now.

Member of the Board of Directors of
Assas Concrete Industries Company
until now.

Representative of the Bank of Jordan
as a member of the Board of
Directors of the Amman Stock
Exchange for the period 2005-2007
and the Board of Directors of the
Jordanian Company for pilot projects
for the period 2007-2012.

8. Dr. Marwan Jamil Issa Al-Muasher
Board of Directors member
Date of | 1/1/2016 Academic PhD in  computer
membership: qualification: engineering
Year of Birth: 1956 Year of | 1981
graduation:
Nationality: Jordanian University: Purdue University
United States

Biography overview:

Senior Vice President of the World
Bank for Foreign Affairs 2007.
Deputy Prime Minister and
Minister of Foreign Affairs 2002-
2004.

Jordanian Ambassador to the United
States of America 1997-2001.
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9. Mr. Mu'taz Mohammad Murtada Abdul Hamid Murtada
Board of Directors member, representing the Arabian Cement Bahrain

Holding Company.
Date of | 01/01/2022 Academic Bachelor of
membership: qualification: Commerce
Year of Birth: 1977 Year of | 1996
graduation:
Nationality: Egyptian University: Tanta University —
Egypt

Biography overview:

- Deputy Chief Executive Officer for
Financial Affairs at the Arab
Cement Company from 2013 to
date.

- General Manager of the Financial
Operations Sector at Bupa Arabia
for Cooperative Insurance 2012-
2013.

- General Manager of Group
Financial Affairs at Halwani
Brothers Company 2007-2012.

- He held several positions in the
financial management of Unilever
Mashreq Company, and his last
position in the company was the
group financial controller, in addition
to the company’s strategy
implementation officer.

- He has a fellowship and membership
in the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and Auditors
since 2002.

10. -Engineer Mu'ataz Qusay Al-Azzawi until 31/12/2023
Board of Directors member, representing the Arabian Cement Bahrain

Holding Company.

Date of | 01/01/2018 Academic Bachelor of Engineering

membership: qualification: | (Computer)

Year of | 1972 Year of | 1995

Birth: graduation:

Nationality: | Saudi University: King Saud University -
Saudi Arabia

Biography overview:

- 23 years of experience in
investment, trade and contracting
management.

- Member of the Board of Directors
at Riyad Bank.

- Member of the Board of Directors
at Savola Group.

- Member of the Board of Directors
at Arabian Cement.

- Member of the Board of Directors
at Etihad Etisalat Company.

- Member of the Board of Directors
of Herfy Food Services.

- Member of the Board of Directors
of United Sugar.

- Member of the Board of Directors
at Alexandria Sugar.

Member of the Board of Directors at
Al-Malika Food Industries.

Member of the Board of Directors at Al
Farasha Food Industries.

Member of the Board of Directors at
Qatrana Cement.

Member of the Board of Directors in
Saudi Arabia for Industrial
Construction and Engineering Projects.
Member of the Board of Directors of
Saudi Technology and Trade.

Member of the Board of Directors of
Al-Waseat Development Company.
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As of 01/01/2024:

Turki bin Abdullah bin Abdulaziz Al Rajhi
Board of Directors member, representing the Arabian Cement Bahrain Holding

Company.

Date of | 01/01/2024 Academic Bachelor of

membership: qualification: Industrial
Management

Year of Birth: 1977 Year of | 1997

graduation:

Nationality: Saudi University: King Fahd
University of
Petroleum and
Minerals -  Saudi
Arabia

Biography overview:

Member of the Board of Directors
of “Arabian Cement Company”
since August 29, 2016

Member of the Board of Directors
of Al Rajhi Investment Company
Member of the Board of Directors
of the Abdullah bin Abdulaziz Al

Member of the Board of Directors of
the National Committee for Prisoner
Care “Tarahum” since 2018

He served as General Manager of
“Al Rajhi Plastic Factory Company”
between 2000 and 2018

He served as General Manager of the

Rajhi Charitable Foundation

National

Polyester Fiber Factory

Company between 2005 and 2018

Names and ranks of senior management persons and an introductory summary

of each of them:

Engineer Raja Khalil Ibrahim Al-Alami
Board of Directors member and Chief Executive Officer of the company.

Date of | 2/5/1995 Academic bachelor of Civil
membership: qualification: | Engineering
Year of Birth: 1952 Year of | 1976
graduation:
Nationality: Jordanian University: University of Birmingham —
Britain
Biography overview:
- Engineer at the Civil Aviation - Member of the Board of Directors of

Authority from 1

- Partner in an

976 to 1979.
engineering

consulting office from 1979 to

date.

Masafat Specialized Transport Company
since its establishment in 2006 to date.
- Chairman of the Board of Directors of Assas

Concrete Industries

Company since its

establishment in 2007 to date.
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Engineer Dahoud Youssef Khalil Kousaya
Director of Operations Department and Assistant Chief Executive Officer

Date of | 16/06/2005 Academic bachelor of Civil
appointment: qualification: Engineering
Year of Birth: 1960 Year of | 1985
graduation:
Nationality: Jordanian University: University of Texas
- United States

Biography overview:

- Head of the Construction Materials
Department at the Arab Center for
Engineering Studies (ACES).

- Quality control manager in the
Jeddah Taif water desalination
project/Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

Deputy General Manager at the Ready
Mixed Concrete and Construction
Supplies Company.

Mr. Lu'ay Essam Abdel Salam Arafat

Manager of Support Services Department and Finance Manager

Date of | 01/11/2009 Academic Bachelor of Accounting

appointment: qualification: | ACPA/CFC/CBA

Year of Birth: | 1969 Year of | 1991

graduation:

Nationality: Jordanian University: University of Mosul — Iraq

Biography overview:

- Financial and  administrative - Financial and administrative manager at
manager at Masafat Specialized Data Serve & Turnkey Solutions / Saudi
Transport Company. Arabia.

- Financial Manager at Al Fardan - Financial Auditor: Jordanian
Company / Qatar. Telecommunications Company.

Mr. Muhammad Ahmed Ali Gharir

Manager of the Credit and Collection Department and Shareholder Relations Officer

Date of | 01/01/2002 Academic Master of Accounting
appointment: qualificatio
n:
Year of Birth: | 1977 Year of | 2004
graduation:
Nationality: Jordanian University: | Amman Arab University
for Postgraduate Studies —
Jordan

Biography overview:

- Manager of the Credit and Collection
Department for the Ready Mixed
Concrete and Construction Supplies

Company.

- Personnel Affairs and Shareholder
Relations Officer for the Ready Mixed
Concrete and Construction Supplies

Company.

Assistant Financial manager of the
Ready Mixed Concrete and Construction
Supplies Company.

Head of the Accounting Department of
the  ready-mixed  concrete and
construction supplies company.
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3. The names of the major shareholders and the number of shares held by
each of them compared to the previous ones (shareholders who hold

shares exceeding 5% of the company’s capital) are:

Name 2022 2023
No. of shares Yo No. of shares %0

Arabian Cement Bahrain Holding
Company 9.166.666 |36.7% | 9.166.666 |36.7%
Arab Bank

2.500.000 10% 2.500.000 10%
International Brokerage and
Financial Markets Company 632.899 2.53% 632.899 2.53%
Raja Khalil Ibrahim Al-Alami

1.424.370 | 5.69% 1,328,629 | 5.40%
4. The Company’s competitive position within its sector of activity, its main

markets, its share of the local market, as well as its share of foreign

markets:

The Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies Company is considered
one of the leading and distinguished companies in the field of ready mix
concrete production, and its main markets are the local market only as this
commodity cannot be marketed externally. There are also no local sources that
enable us to know our share of the local market.

S. Specific suppliers or major customers, locally or externally:
- Suppliers who constitute 10% or more of the company’s total

purchases are:

Supplier

Transaction percentage of total purchases

Qatrana Cement Company

42%

- There is no reliance on specific suppliers, locally or externally, other
than those mentioned above, who constitute 10% or more of total

purchases.

- There is no reliance on any major client, as the company supplies
ready-mixed concrete to a large number of contractors and multiple
projects, and the company does not have any special agreement with
any party or contractor.

- There are no contracts or engagements concluded by the company with
the Chairman of the Board of Directors, members of the Board of
Directors, the General Manager, any employee of the company, or their

relatives.
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Governmental protection or privileges enjoyed by the company or any of

its products under laws, regulations or otherwise.

- There is no governmental protection or privileges enjoyed by the
company or any of its products under laws, regulations or otherwise.

- There are no patents, inventions or royalties obtained by the company.

Decisions issued by a government, international organizations, or others
have a material impact on the company’s work, products, or competitive
ability.

- There are no decisions issued by the government, international
organizations, or others that have a material impact on the company’s
work, products, or competitive ability.

- The company is committed to applying quality standards and according
to the specifications of Jordan Standards and Metrology Organization,
the Royal Scientific Society, and the Ministry of Public Works.
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7. Organizational Structure
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8.

10.

11.

Risks to which the Company is exposed

- Changes in the costs of fuel, raw materials, spare parts, etc., which may
negatively affect costs and sales volume.

- The slow movement of projects and the intensity of market competition

The most important achievements achieved by the Company during the
fiscal year
Developing information technology and creating applications on smart
phones in all departments of the company

Cost control

Developing the special products department and implementing many
projects for concrete floors or decorative cement walls, supplying and
implementing foam concrete, implementing cement waterproofing,
supplying and implementing ready-mixed plaster, and others.

Manage supply chain more effectively.

There is no financial impact of operations of a non-recurring nature that
occurred during the fiscal year 2023 and are not part of the company’s
main activity.
Time series of realized profits or losses, distributed profits, net
shareholders’ equity, and prices of securities issued by the company:

Year | Net realized profits Net shareholders' Share | Distributed
(losses) equity closing profits
price ratio
2016 4.203.565 Dinars 35.998.750 Dinars 1.11 8%
2017 2.394.781 Dinars 65.736.309 Dinars 1.05 10%
2018 142.555 Dinars 32.616.763 Dinars 0.54 8%
2019 (3.567.363) Dinars 29.030.463 Dinars 0.38 -
2020 (4.607.272) Dinars 24.397.119 Dinars 0.34 -
2021 610.079 Dinars 25.069.547 Dinars 0.47 -
2022 1.808.554 Dinars 26.841.811 Dinars 0.40 -
2023 4.179.299 Dinars 31.296.184 Dinars 0.84 -

In the financial statements ending in 2020, there is a financial impact of
operations of a non-recurring nature, which is a decrease in investments in

sister public shareholding companies by an amount of (2.867.637).

-22-




12. Analysis of the company’s financial position and the results of its
business during the fiscal year:
A. Company revenues: The company’s revenues amounted to 50.367.878 Dinars,
distributed as follows:
Description 2023 — Jordanian Dinar

Revenue from sales with affiliates

49.784.907

Income from the sale of property 59.509
Income from investment properties 363.742
Other income 159.720
Total revenues 50.367.878

B. Budget, profits and losses: The company achieved a net profit of 2.279.019
Jordanian Dinars during the year 2023, compared to a net profit of 1,808,552
Jordanian Dinars in the year 2022.

C. Sales:

The company's sales of ready-mix concrete were 48.668,400 Jordanian Dinars
for the year 2023. The table below shows the value of sales for the last five

years:
Year 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Sales 30.500.458 | 21.868.683 | 29.338.269 | 39.251.686 | 48.668.400
D. Financial ratios:

Description 2022 2023
Gross profit margin 9% 15%
Current ratio 64% 72%
Sales to assets ratio 67% 67%
Current liabilities to shareholders' equity 1.081 1.139
Total revenue to shareholders' equity 1.471 1.609

E. Financial indicators and statements:

Description 2022 / Jordanian Dinar | 2023/ Jordanian Dinar
Authorized capital 25.000.000 25.000.000
Subscribed capital 25.000.000 25.000.000

Total assets 58.471.699 56.711.396

Total shareholders' equity 26.841.811 31.296.184

Total revenues 40.101.962 50.367.878
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13.

A- The company’s future plan:
Promoting sustainable development and revitalizing the local market to
contribute effectively to the national economy
Covering the local market’s need for high-quality concrete at competitive
prices.
Optimal investment in the natural resources available in the region and
maintaining a dynamic business environment
Maintaining a level of excellence through training and continuous
development of competencies, projects and services.
Maintaining the application of the highest safety standards and enhancing
environmental preservation
Continuing to work on controlling production costs to improve financial
returns
Always meet all customers’ needs.

B- Important future developments and expectations of the Board of Directors:

14.

Study the possibility of introducing new products to the building materials
market.

Audit fees: The company’s financial statements are audited by Messrs. Talal
Abu Ghazaleh and Partners where their fees for the year 2023 for the Ready
Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies Company and its subsidiaries
amounted to the following:

Name

Fees The

Ready mix concrete and construction supplies 13.000 Dinars
company

company's
auditor  does

Oman Company for the Supply of Construction and | 1.000 Dinars not  provide

Heavy Equipment

any services

Concrete Technology Company 2.000 Dinars to mpan the

Masafat Housing Company 1.750 Dinars f)(t)hefa y than

Arab Chinese Company for Trading and Selling 1.160 Dinars .
. regular audit

Heavy Machinery work

United Ready Mix Concrete Company 2.155 Dinars '
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15. A statement of the number of securities issued by the company and owned by members of the Board of Directors and

their relatives:

Name Position | Nationality No. of shares 31/12/2023 No. of Controlled
The number of Number of shares shares companies
shares held in the held by the 31/12/2022
name of the member’s relatives*
member
personally

Suhail Jamil Al-Muasher & Chairman | Jordanian 401.000 shares - 401.000 -
Brothers Company, represented by shares
Mr. Basem Jamil Issa Al-Muasher
Mr. Makram Khalil Ibrahim Al- Member | Jordanian 55.000 shares - 55.000 -
Alami shares
Mr. Raja Khalil Ibrahim Al-Alami | Member | Jordanian 1.348.629 shares 182.073 shares 1.424.370 ---

shares
Mr. Sohrab Rakad Naji Owais Member | Jordanian 5.000 shares --- 5.000 shares ---
Messrs. Jawdat Al-Alami & Member | Jordanian 5.754 shares 5.754 shares
Brothers Company, represented by 649 shares --- 649 shares ---
Mr. Khalil Makram Khalil Al-
Alami
Messrs. Arabian Cement Bahrain Member Bahraini 9.166.666 shares 9.166.666
Holding Company, represented shares ---
by: - --- -
- Sheikh Saud Abdul Aziz - - -—-
Abdullah Al-Sulaiman
- Mr. Mu'taz Muhammad Mortada
Abdel Hamid Mortada
- Mr. Mu'taz bin Qusay Al-Azzawi
Mr. Anas Mahmoud Al-Chalabi Member Canadian 288.825 shares - 288.825 -

shares
Dr. Marwan Jamil Issa Mu'asher Member | Jordanian 5.000 shares - 5.000 shares -
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17-B Number of securities owned by senior management:

Name

Position

Nationality

No. of shares

31/12/2022 | 31/12/2023

Engineer Dahoud Assistant Chief Jordanian 12,328 12,328
Youssef Khalil Executive Officer
Kousaya
Mr. Lu'ay Essam Support services Jordanian --- -
Abdel Salam Arafat | manager
Mr. Mohammad Manager of the Jordanian 7.068 7.068
Ahmed Ali Gharir Credit, Collection

and Shareholder

Relations

Department

* There are no companies controlled by senior management persons and their

relatives.

18- C- Number of securities owned by relatives of members of the Board of
Directors and senior management:

. . . No. of shares
Name Position Nationality 31122022 | 31/12/2023
Maha Abdel Rahman Member of the Jordanian 62.350 182.073
Khalifa, wife of Raja Board of
Khalil Al-Alami Directors

- Relatives of the remaining members of the Board of Directors and senior
management do not own shares in the company.
- There are no companies controlled by members of the board of directors and

their relatives.

- There are no companies controlled by senior management persons and their

relatives.
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18.A- The benefits and rewards enjoyed by the Chairman and members of the

Board of Directors:

Name Position Annual Auditing | Rewards | Total
transportations | committee annual
benefits
Mr. Bassem Jamil | Chairman 6.000 - 55.000 61,000
Issa Muasher
His Excellency Vice 6.000 - 5.000 11.000
Sheikh Saud Abdul | chairman
Aziz Abdullah Al-
Sulaiman
Mr. Makram Khalil | Member 6.000 2.000 5.000 13.000
Ibrahim Al-Alami
Mr. Anas Member 6.000 2.000 5.000 13.000
Mahmoud Ahmed
Al-Chalabi
Dr. Marwan Jamil | Member 6.000 - 5.000 11.000
Issa Muasher
Mr. Sohrab Rakad | Member 6.000 - 5.000 11.000
Naji Owais
Mr. Khalil Makram | Member 6.000 - 5.000 11.000
Khalil Al-Alami
Mr. Mu'taz bin Member 6.000 - 5.000 11.000
Qusay Al-Azzawi
until 31/12/2023
Mr. Raja Khalil Member 6.000 - 5.000 11.000
Ibrahim Al-Alami
Mr. Mu'taz Member 6.000 2.000 5.000 13.000
Mohammad
Mortada Abdel
Hamid Mortada
Total 60,000 6,000 100.000 | 166,000
18. B- Benefits and rewards enjoyed by senior management:
Name Position Jordanian
Dinar
Engineer Raja Khalil Ibrahim Al- Chief Executive Officer of the 316.800
Alami company
Engineer Dahoud Youssef Khalil Assistant Chief Executive Officer 91.008
Kousaya
Mr. Lu'ay Essam Abdel Salam Manager of Finance and Support 70.164
Arafat Services
Mr. Mohammad Ahmed Ali Gharir | Manager of the Credit, Collection 25.800
and Shareholder Relations
Department
* Due to the nature of the company’s business, a car was allocated to each of the

above managers.
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19.

Donations and grants paid by the company during the fiscal year:

Donations Dinar
Social Solidarity Fund 6.000
Sheikh Ahmed Al-Salik Zakat and Charity Committee 6.000
Al Khansa Hospital 1.000
Other donations 6.160
Total 19.160
1. There are no contracts, projects, or arrangements concluded by the issuing

21. A -

1.

2.

B.

company with subsidiaries, sister companies, affiliates, the Chairman of the
Board of Directors, members of the Board of Directors, the General Manager,
any employee of the company, or their relatives (except for):

1- Masafat Specialized Transport Company, being the company
transporting the company’s concrete material.

2- Concrete Technology Company, being the company that provides us
with the fluidizing material.

3- Al-Quds Concrete Industries, as it is considered the auxiliary supplier

of concrete based on the agreed upon project locations.

The company’s contribution to protecting the environment:

An environmentally friendly concrete product was developed so that the
environmental impact in all supply chains is reduced.

Special environmental and recycling equipment was installed, in addition to
dust filters and water sprinklers.

The company’s contribution to serving the local community:

The company seeks to provide new job opportunities for people in the areas in which
it operates.

Participate in other partnerships
The company invested at the following percentages in the following companies:

6.89% of the capital of Qatraneh Cement Company, amounting to 90,624,000
Dinars.

40.94% of the capital of Masafat Specialized Transport Company, amounting
to 18,500,000 Dinars.

39.9% of the capital of Assas Concrete Industries Company, amounting to
7,120,000 Dinars.

35.32% of the capital of Al-Quds Concrete Industries Company, amounting to
7,460,026 Dinars.

50% of the capital of the Jerusalem Crushers and Quarries Company,
amounting to 15,000 Dinars.

Implementing the guiding rules of the corporate governance guide for companies

listed on the Amman Stock Exchange

During the year 2023, the company adhered to the application of the guidelines
contained in the Governance Guide for Companies Listed on the Amman Stock
Exchange.
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Governance report
® Information and details related to the application of corporate
governance provisions and rules

Adherence is made to implementing the governance instructions of listed companies,

as the company has an internal governance system approved by the Board of Directors

and in accordance with corporate governance rules, as follows:

1) Formation of the Board of Directors:

The Board of Directors consists of ten members who are elected according to the

cumulative voting method by the General Assembly by secret ballot. The term of the

Board is four years. All members of the Board are qualified persons who have

sufficient experience and knowledge of financial and legislative matters.

2) Duties and responsibilities of the Board of Directors:

The Board of Directors has an internal system that determines the tasks, powers and

responsibilities of the Board through:

A. Develop strategies, policies, plans and procedures that will achieve the
company’s interest and objectives, maximize the rights of its shareholders,
and serve the local community.

B. Establishing the necessary procedures to ensure that all shareholders,
including non-Jordanians, obtain their rights and are treated in a manner that
achieves justice and equality without discrimination.

C. Taking the necessary measures to ensure compliance with the provisions of
applicable legislation.

D. Adopting a risk management policy to which the company may be exposed.

E. Organizing the company’s financial, accounting and administrative matters
according to special internal regulations.

F. Preparing the annual and quarterly reports and a report on the results of the
initial work, in accordance with the provisions of the legislation in force.

G. Approving the governance report and including it in the company’s annual
report.

H. Establishing rules of professional conduct for the Board of Directors,

executive management and employees of the company and constantly
reviewing and updating them.

L. Ensure that a website is provided for the company, which includes the most
important data and information about the company, provided that this
information is constantly updated.

J. Appointing a liaison officer entrusted with following up on matters related to
governance applications in the company with the Authority.
K. Adopting the company’s disclosure and transparency policy and following up

on its implementation in accordance with the requirements of regulatory
authorities and applicable legislation.

L. Develop a policy to avoid conflicts of interest and procedures aimed at
preventing insiders in the company from exploiting confidential internal
information to achieve material or moral gains.

M. Establishing a clear delegation policy in the company, according to which the
authorized persons and the limits of the powers delegated to them are
determined.

N. Appointing the general manager of the company and terminating his services.

0. Ensure the availability of the necessary administrative and technical

competence and experience among the senior executive management
personnel to carry out the tasks assigned to them, determine their tasks and
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powers, review their performance of their tasks, and the extent to which they
apply the established policies, plans and procedures.

Taking necessary steps to ensure the existence of internal control over the
company’s work progress, including establishing a special unit for oversight
and internal audit whose mission is to ensure compliance with the
implementation of the provisions of applicable legislation, the requirements
of regulatory authorities, internal systems, and policies, plans, and
procedures established by the Board of Directors.

Adopting the replacement and succession policy and approving the
company’s human resources and training policy.

Developing the company’s social responsibility policy and programs towards
the local community and the environment.

Establishing a mechanism to receive complaints and suggestions submitted
by shareholders, including their suggestions for including certain topics on
the agenda of the General Assembly meeting in a way that ensures that they
are studied and the appropriate decision is taken regarding them within a
specific period of time.

Develop a mechanism that allows shareholders who own at least 5% of the
company’s subscribed shares to add items to the agenda of the company’s
ordinary general assembly meeting before sending it in its final form to
shareholders, provided that the authority is provided with this mechanism.
Approving the policy for granting rewards, benefits, incentives and salaries
in the company.

Develop a policy regulating the relationship with stakeholders to ensure the
implementation of the company’s obligations towards them, preserve their
rights, provide them with the necessary information, and establish good
relations with them.
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Memberships of board members in other public joint stock companies

Mr. Bassem Jamil Muasher
The Jordan Worsted Mills Company
Premier Business and Projects Co.

Arab International Hotels

Engineer Makram Khalil Al-Alami

Masafat Specialized Transport Company
Assas Concrete Industries Company

Dr. Marwan Jamil Muasher

Jordan Kuwait Bank
Masafat Specialized Transport Company

Mr. Sohrab Rakad Owais

Assas Concrete Industries Company

Engineer Anas Mahmoud Al-Shalabi

Assas Concrete Industries Company

Engineer Khalil Makram Al-Alami

Assas Concrete Industries Company

Engineer Raja Khalil Al-Alami

Masafat Specialized Transport Company

Assas Concrete Industries Company

Board of Directors member
Chairman of Board of
Directors

Board of Directors member

Board of Directors member
Board of Directors member

Board of Directors member
Chairman of Board of
Directors

Board of Directors member

Board of Directors member

Board of Directors member

Vice chairman of Board of
Directors
Chairman of Board of
Directors

The following are board members in Jordanian public joint stock companies:
- His Excellency Sheikh Saud bin Abdulaziz Abdullah Al-Sulaiman.

- Engineer Mu'taz bin Qusay Al-Azzawi.

- Mr. Mu'taz Mohammad Mortada Abdel Hamid Mortada.
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Names of members of the Board of Directors for the year 2023

Name

Executive ) Non-
executive

Independent or
non-independent

Mr. Bassem Jamil Muasher

Non-executive

Non-independent

Sheikh Saud Abdulaziz Al-Sulaiman

Non-executive

Non-independent

Mr. Anas Mahmoud Al-Shalabi

Non-executive

Independent

Dr. Marwan Jamil Muasher

Non-executive

Non-independent

Engineer Makram Khalil Al-Alami

Non-executive

Non-independent

Mr. Mu'taz bin Qusay Al-Azzawi

Non-executive

Non-independent

Mr. Mu'taz Mohammad Mortada Abdel
Hamid Mortada

Non-executive

Non-independent

Mr. Khalil Makram Al-Alami

Non-executive

Non-independent

Mr. Sohrab Rakad Owais

Non-executive

Independent

Engineer Raja Khalil Al-Alami

Executive

Non-independent

* Committees emanating from the Board of Directors

* Names of the Chairman and members of the committees emanating from the

Board of Directors:
1. Audit Committee:

Engineer Anas Mahmoud Ahmed Al-Chalabi - Chairman of the Committee

Date of | 2/5/2009 Academic Master's  degree  in

membership: qualification: | Mechanical Engineering

Year of | 1952 Year of | 1976

Birth: graduation:

Nationality: Canadian University: University of London —
Britain

Biography overview:

- He worked in the field of
petroleum investments in the
United Arab Emirates.

- Board of Directors member of
Masafat  Specialized Transport
Company since its founding in
2006 to date.

- Board of Directors member, Assas
Concrete Industries Company.
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Engineer Makram Khalil Ibrahim Al-Alami

Date of | 2/5/1995 Academic bachelor of Civil
membership: qualification: | Engineering
Year of Birth: 1952 Year of | 1978
graduation:
Nationality: Jordanian University: Purdue  University -
United States

Biography overview :

General Manager and Partner in an
exchange company from 1979-
2005.

Chairman of the Board of
Directors of the Ready Mixed
Concrete and Construction
Supplies Company since its
establishment in 1995.

General Manager of Masafat
Specialized Transport Company

Chairman of the Board of Directors of

Masafat Specialized Transport
Company since its establishment in
2006 to date.

Board of Directors member of Assas
Concrete Industries Company since its
establishment in 2007 to date.

Mr. Mu'taz Mohammad Murtada Abdul Hamid Murtada - Member of the Audit

Committee
Date of | 01/01/2022 Academic Bachelor of
membership: qualification: Commerce
Year of Birth: 1977 Year of | 1996
graduation:
Nationality: Egyptian University: Tanta University —
Egypt

Biography overview:

Deputy Chief Executive Officer for
Financial Affairs at the Arab
Cement Company from 2013 to
date.

General Manager of the Financial
Operations Sector at Bupa Arabia
for Cooperative Insurance 2012-
2013.

General Manager of  Group
Financial ~Affairs at Halwani
Brothers Company 2007-2012.

He held several positions in the
financial management of Unilever
Mashreq, and his last position in the
company was the group financial
controller, in addition to the
company’s strategy implementation
officer.

He held a fellowship and
membership in the American
Institute  of  Certified  Public
Accountants and Auditors since
2002.
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2. Remuneration and Nominations Committee:

Mr. Sohrab Owais Chairman
Engineer Makram Al-Alami Member
Mr. Bassem Muasher Member
3. Governance Committee:

Mr. Sohrab Owais Chairman
Mr. Bassem Muasher Member
4. Risk Management Committee:

Mr. Bassem Muasher Chairman
Engineer Dahoud Kosaya Member
Mr. Lu'ay Arafat Member

Executive positions and the names of their occupants

- Chief Executive Officer, Engineer Raja Khalil Al-Alami.
- Deputy Chief Executive Officer and Director of Operations Department,

Engineer Dahoud Kosaya.

- Manager of Support Services Department and Financial Director, Mr. Lu'ay

Arafat.

- Manager of the Credit, Collection and Shareholder Relations Department,

Mohammad Ahmed Gharir.

Names of the legal members of the Board of Directors

Name Executive or Independent or
Non-executive | non-independent
Sheikh Saud Abdulaziz  Al-Sulaiman, Non-executive Non-independent

representative  of the Arabian Cement

Company, Bahrain

Mr. Mu'taz bin  Qusay Al-Azzawi,
representative of Arabian Cement Company
Bahrain until 31/12/2023

Non-executive

Non-independent

Mr. Mu'taz Mohammed Murtada,
representative  of the Arabian Cement
Company, Bahrain

Non-executive

Non-independent

Mr. Khalil Makram Al-Alami, representative
of Jawdat Al-Alami & Brothers Company

Non-executive

Non-independent

Mr. Bassem Jamil Al-Muasher,
representative of Suhail Jamil Al-Muasher &
Brothers Company

Non-executive

Non-independent

Names of the natural members of the Board of Directors

Name

Executive or
Non-executive

Independent or
non-independent

Engineer Raja Khalil Al-Alami

Executive

Non-independent

Engineer Makram Khalil Al-Alami

Non-executive

Non-independent

Mr. Anas Mahmoud Al-Shalabi Non-executive Independent
Dr. Marwan Jamil Muasher Non-executive Non-independent
Mr. Sohrab Rakad Owais Non-executive Independent
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Number of meetings of each committee emanating from the Board of Directors

during the vear 2023:

Board of Directors First | Second Third Fourth Fifth

members 06/2/23 | 27/3/23 | 30/4/23 27/7/23 29/10/23

Engineer Makram Khalil | Present | Present | Present Present Present

Al-Alami

Sheikh Saud Abdulaziz Present | Present Present Present Present

Al-Sulaiman

Mr. Mu'taz bin Qusay Al- | Present | Present | Present Absent Absent

Azzawi

Mr. Mu'taz Mohamed Present | Present Present Present Present

Mortada

Mr. Sohrab Rakad Owais | Present | Present Present Present Present

Dr. Marwan Jamil Present | Present Present Present Present

Muasher

Mr. Khalil Makram Al- Present | Present Present Present Present

Alami

Mr. Bassem Jamil Present | Present Present Present Present

Muasher

Mr. Anas Mahmoud Al- Present | Present Present Present Present

Shalabi

Engineer Raja Khalil Al- | Present | Present | Present Present Present

Alami

Auditing Committee members First Second Third Fourth
5/2/23 29/4/23 26/7/23 26/10/23

Mr. Anas Al-Shalabi Present Present Present Present

Engineer Makram Al-Alami Present Present Present Present

Mr. Mu'taz Mortada Present Present Present Present

Risk management committee First 29/7/23 Second 7/12/23

members

Mr. Bassem Muasher Present Present

Engineer Dawood Kousaya Present Present

Mr. Lu'ay Arafat Present Present

Governance committee First 26/10/23 Second 21/12/23

members

Mr. Sohrab Owais Present Present

Mr. Bassem Muasher Present Present

Nominations and remuneration First 24/12/23 Second 25/10/24

committee members

Mr. Sohrab Rakad Owais Present Present

Mr. Bassem Jamil Muasher Present Present

Engineer Makram Khalil Al-Alami Present Present
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Number of Board of Directors meetings, indicating the number of attendance
times during the year 2023:

One meeting was held between the Audit Committee and Talal Abu Ghazaleh,
the company’s external auditor.

Mr. Tariq Rabah Hindi was appointed as a liaison officer to follow up on
matters related to the application of corporate governance at the Securities
Commission.

Recommendations of the Board of Directors for the General Assembly meeting:

Reciting the proceedings of the previous regular meeting of the General
Assembly.

Reading the Board of Directors’ report for the fiscal year 2023 and
discussing the future plan for 2024.

Listen to the company’s auditors’ report on its budget and final accounts for
the year 2023.

Discussing and approving the balance sheet and final accounts for the fiscal
year ending on 31/12/2023.

Discharge the Board of Directors within the limits permitted by law.

Electing auditors for the fiscal year 2024 and authorizing the Board of
Directors to determine their fees.

Any other matters the General Assembly proposes to include in the agenda in
accordance with the provisions of Article (171) of the Companies Law.

Dear Distinguished Shareholders,

After you listened to its report, the Board of Directors is pleased to extend its sincere
thanks to all shareholders and customers for their continued trust and support for the
company.

The Board extends its sincere thanks to all the company’s employees, management,
employees and workers for the services and sincere efforts they have provided to
achieve the company’s goals and objectives, wishing them continued progress and
prosperity.

Chairman of Board of Directors
Bassem Jamil Issa Mu'asher

—
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Acknowledgment

We acknowledge the validity, accuracy, and completeness of the information and
data contained in the annual report for the year ending 31/12/2023.

Chairman of Board of

Chief Executive Officer

Financial manager

Directors
Mr. Bassem Jamil Issa | Engineer Raja Khalil Al- | Mr. Lu'ay Essam Arafat
Mu'asher Alami

" - — _

—__—--d---;f"

.

Acknowledgment of the Board of Directors:

- The Board of Directors acknowledges that there are no fundamental
matters that may affect the company’s continuity during the year 2024.

- The Board of Directors acknowledges its responsibility for preparing
the financial statements for the year 2023 and for providing an
effective control system for the company.

Chairman of Board of Directors

—..———»-d-—--——;f/

His Excellency Sheikh Saud Abdul Aziz
Abdullah Al-Sulaiman
Member

=

Mr. Sohrab Rakad Naji Owais

Member
-'r
Lz
-'

Mr. Khalil Makram Khalil Al-Alami

Member

Engineer Makram Khalil Ibrahim Al-
Alami
Member

Engineer Raja Khalil Ibrahim Al-Alami
Member

Mr. Mu'taz Mohammad Mortada

Engineer Mu'taz bin Qusay Al-Azzawi

2

Engineer Anas Mahmoud Ahmed Al-

Chalabi ___. ﬂﬁ, .
rﬂ__b

Dr. Marwan Jamil Issa Muasher

/
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Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies Company
and its subsidiaries
Public joint stock limited company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Consolidated financial statements
And the independent auditor's report

For the year ending December 31, 2023
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Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman = The Hashemite Kingdom of jordan

Consolidated Financial Statemnent
and independent Auditor's Repor
for the year ended December 31, 2023



Ready Mix Concrete and Congtruction Supplies
Public Sharcholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

independent auditor's report

Consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2023

Consolicdated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2023
Consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended December 31, 2023
Consolidated statemeant of cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2023

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023
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SIS B A N

Talal Abu-Ghazaleh & Co, International

@ TAGHhufors

Alliance with Russel! Bedford International More than 120 member & cormrespondent firms
- and 280 offices in Europe, the Americas & Asia-Pacific

Glebal Company for Auditing asd Accounbiag

105180459
Independent Auditors Report

To Messrs, Shareholders

Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Suppiies
Fublic Shareholding Company

Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Opinion

We have audiied the consolidated financial statements of Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
(Public Shareholding Company) and if's subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at December 31, 2023, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financiat statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our ¢pinicn, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in afl material respects, the financial
pasition of the Company as at December 31, 2023, and of its fipancial performance and its cash Mlows for
ihe year then ended in accordarnce with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS).

Basis for Qpinion

We conducted our audit based on International Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities towards these
standards are clartfied in our report within the paragraph of responsibility of the auditor on auditing the
consolidated financial statements.

We are independen! from the company based on the requirements of Internationa) Ehical Standards
Boards of accountants “A guide to ethical conduct for professional accountants” and the ethical
requirements that is related to our audit of financial siatements, in addition to our commitment to other
ethical responsibilities, based on their requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to pravide a basis (or our
opinion

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of meost significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the curtent period. These matters wers addiessed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our apinion thereon, and we do not provide a
séeparate opinion on thase matters.

Expected credit Insses

The company has adopted the requirement of
expected credit losses for International Financial
Reporting Standard Mo, (9). The allowance for
expectad credit losses amounting to JT) 4,328,409
as of December 31, 2023

Scope of audit

We conducted comprehensive evaluations o
determine the main controls used in determining
expected credit losses, data collecton and, its
completenegs, and the relevant estimates and
assumpiions used by management. We tested the
main control systems on the modeling process.

TAG-Org Building, No. 26 ST G TG ARIPCIER 5-FUN. P S VEUR
Pritice Shalker bin Zsid St, Sameisani #a Foruw or Firus et 3l S ¥ B gl
Tel.: +962 6 5100 900 . P B0 4.0 wdila
Fax: +962 6 5603 941 tagi.com ST AT A6 ol
P.O0.Box: 921100, Amman 11192 Jordan tagi@tagi.com CRUM VIVAY e ATV L e




Ready Mix Concrete and Constraction Supplies —~T M S IR B Y HIE

Public Bhareholding Company )
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan ‘Talal Abu-Ghazaleh & Co. International

Notes to the consolidated Heancial statements For the year ended December 31, 2023

lovestment property impairment Scopa of audit

According K the requirements of the  Our audit procedures included, among other
International Financial reporting standards, the things, obtaining an evaluation of certified veal
investrent property is initially valued at cost, estate experts to assist us M determining the
inclading tansaction costs, the carrying values market value of those investment properties at the
of investment property are reviewed for date of the consolidated Financial statements
impaument when events or changes in the  report

circurnstances indicate the carrying value may

not be recoverable. Tf any such indication of

impairment exists, impairments losses are

caleulated in accordance with impairment of

assets policy.

DOther Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
[information included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon. )

Cur opinion on the consolidated financial staternent does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated Hrancial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in deing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledgs
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materiafly misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required o report that fact, We have nothing %o report in this regard.

Recponsibilitiee of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard, and for
such imternal control a5 management determines is necessary to enable e preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstaternent, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the conselidated financial statements, management is respansible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related ko going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do sa.

These charged with govarnance are respaneible for overseaing the Company’s consolidated
financial reporting process.

Anditors’ Responsibiliti the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasenable assurance about whether the consclidated fnancial
statements as a whaole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ercor, and
fo issue &n andiiors” raport that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but I5 not a guarantee that an audit conducted mv accordance with [nternational
Standard: on Auditing (I5As) will always detect a materia! misstaterment when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually cr in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected ko influence the aconemic decisions 0[ U5ers
taken on the basis of these consolidated financizl statements,



Raady Mix Concrete and Consiruction Supplizs A Mk dw_}'jﬂh — % ‘ﬁTB"

Public Sharcholding Company ,
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of fordan Tala! Abu-Ghazaleh & Co. [nternational

Nates to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023

As part of an audit in accordance with Internationat Standard on Auditing, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

s Jdentify and assess the risks of material misskatement of the consolidated financial
stafements, whether dume to fraud or error, design and petform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that s sufficlent and appropriate o
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for are rasulting from error, 2z fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intenttonal cmissiens. mistepresentations, or the override of internal
conlrol

Obain an understanding of internal control relevant to the auadit in order ko design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the chrcumstances, but mot for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal contral.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies wsed and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude an the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence abtained, whether a material ancertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue a3 2 going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditors’ repoit to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to medify our
opinioa. Cur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
aaditers’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
ko conlinue as a going concer.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and combent of the consolidated fimancial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation,

+ Obtain Sufficient and appropriate audit evidence about the financial information of
establishments or business activities within the group fo express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, suparvision and
completion of the group audit We remain absolutely responsible for the audit report.

We communicate with Hhose charged with governanre regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit Findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Woe also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them ail
relationships and other matters that may reasonzbly be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, relaked safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine ¢hose
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the corrent
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclesure about the matter ar when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be commwnicated in
our report becausa the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
cutweigh the public interest benefits of such communication
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Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom af Jordan Taial Abu-Ghazateh & Co. International

Motes to the comsolidated financial statements For (he year ¢nded December 31, 2023

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The Company has proper accounting records which are, in all material respects, consistent
with the consolidated financial stalements, we recommend to approve these financial
statements by the general assembly.

al Abu-Ghazalah & Co. International

Mohammad Al-Azrag
(License # T000)
Amiman February 13, 2024




Ready Mix Conerete and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Consolidated Statement of fimancial position as at December 31, 2023

Notes 2003 o s
ASSETS JD jO
Mon-current Assels
Propetty, plants and equipment 3 16,367,960 16,121,169
investments in assaciates 4 12,206,263 11,394,158
nvestznent in fimancial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income 5 5,836,190 6,836,190
Investinent peoperty 6 4,267,854 4,672 066
Checks snder collection and on hand - non-current T2000 260,218
Defecred tax assels 7 - 505 %15
Fatal Non-coirent Assets 38,750,267 39,769,636
Current Assels
Inventory ) 1,259,944 1,412,437
Investment in firancial asset at fair vatue throogh
profitor loss 5 273513 1261
Chee from related parties 1d 432807 624,961
Accounts receivablz and other dehit balances 11 1359540 1,007,629
Trade receivables 12 44671021 5,784,058
Checks under collecton and on hand - current portion 4,803.486 9,415,759
Checks oo hand - refated partes hcl - 110,000
Current accounts at banks 340818 304,568
Total Carent Assets 16,961,129 13,682,063
TOTAL ASSETS 56,711,396 56,471,609

The accompanying notes constitute an integral part of these Financiz] stataements
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Ready Mix Concrete and Constructien Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman = The Hashemite Kingdom of jordan

Consolidated Statement of financial position as at December 31, 2023

EQUITY AND LIABILTTIES
Exguity

Capital

Additional paid-in capitel
Slahubory resarve

Voluntary reserve

Change in fair value of irrvestments in financial assels af fair
value throwgh ciber comprehensive income - assaciates

Accumubzted losses

Net Equity

Liahilities

Non -Curcent Liabilites

Loans - aon cutrent portion
Deferted chocks -non current portion
Tatal Non Current Liabilifies
Corment Liakilikes

Dxie to related parties

(ther credit balances

Encotna tax provision

Deferred checks

Deferred chiecks - related parties
Tradle payables

Loang - curtent pertion

Banks overdraft

Total Corrent Liabilitias

Tota Liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND EIABILITIES

Notes . e pithr]

1] D
25,000,002 25,000,000
100,10 1600000
13 3540015 3,076,317
H 3,168,871 2512
(200,980} (376.334)
(LH.728 §3,163,344)
31,296,184 26,841 511
1 1941 633 2.588 519
- 14,635
1,941,534 2,503,15¢
10 $07M.214 5.390,040
13 1,682 604 1,674,462
7 7965 28,548
7327 146,850
L1 5,430,922 8,904,723
16 8,600,615 TS 5
17 1112589 240368
18 885,972 4,440,636
23473578 20,025 734
2541512 31,629 283
58,7it,356 58,473 699

The accompanying notes constitute an integral part of these financial stataemenks
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FReady Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies

Public Shareholding Company

Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of }ordan

Congolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 3023

Net sales

Costof sales

Grogs profit

Otther reveaues, net

Share of profit of asseciates

Administrative selling and distribution expenses
Finance cost

Impairment losses of investments in associates
Profit beforetax and natidnal contribution

National contrbution

(Expense) surphus of income tax
Income tax paid on prior years
Profit

Cther comprebensive income

Change in fair vale of investment in finantial asset through other

comprefiemsive income - assoriates
Total comprebiensive income
Weighted average number of shares

Profit per share

Nates w5 v
D D

9784907 50,894

W 4T (33953,724)

7,340,086 351,10

il LU | 547,068

LIFL88) 717467

7 £18150 (519708

{676,729 [35.407)

4 (692 (6242}

500848 134173

15 (15719 10647

7 7L #6621

6139 {11,593

42789 140454

175354 6290

§A4,373 1,772,264

2000000 25,000,000

B 0/ D B D

The accompanying notes consfitute an integral parct of these finzancial stataements
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Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Fublic Shareholding Company
Amiman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Cansolidated stalement of cash flows Lor the year ended December 31, 2023

2023 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES o I
Profit before tax and nabanal conkrilnation BOTF0.84T 1344 173
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 1,260,321 1.24% 995
Caing from sele of property, plant and equipment (S9.009) (120,220
Impairment losses of nvestoent in asscciates £6,522 B2 A0
Share of profit of associates (F.072.680 (717 467}
Change in faic value of investment In fimeocial auset at fair
value through profit or loss 0128 27 S50
Investment propecty depreciataon 56,550 56 551
Exparctod cradit logses 361,144 1504087
Change in operating assets and labilities:
Inventory 152,483 {8,207
Zue from eelated partios | THELSOD 534,865
Accounis receivable and other debit balances {(351.911) (A28 671)
Trade receivables g7 057 (1,571,487
Choecks ander celfootdon and on hangl 700,521 (1317,247
Chiecks on hand - related parties 110,000 [T, OOy
Due ko related padies {1,268 826) {F47,258)
Oehar oradit balances 192,673 a1e 541
Deferred chiacks (302,258 T4, 768
Deferred chocks - refated partes (1,020.801; 1,954 316
Trade parables 1,462 500 2655, 159

6,321,735 3125,582
Encome kax paid {71245y (48,564}
ek cash Erom operating activities 6,450,505 3077, 158
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Putchase of property. plant and equipment {1,621,216) {2.102.219)
Procerds from sale of property, plants and equipment 65,341 162,187
Invesonent in financial asset at fair value through profit or loss (BL,750) -
[nvestments in associates 369210 265,003
Purchase of inwveskment prapearty - (20510}
Disposal of inveslment properiy ER0L00K0 155,000
Net cash Erom investing activities (921,41%) (1,540,549}
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCIMNG ACTIVITIES
Loana {1.908,176) P08 H65
Banks overdraft (3.554,664) {2.503,995}
Met cazh Erom financing activitics (5,492 84C) {1,395 330
Met change in cash and cash equvilents 36,230 141,239
nsh and cash equivalenis - beginning of vear 304 5568 163,329
Cash and cash eqguivalents - end of yeas M0,518 204 555
Informaticn about non cash tranzactions
Transfer from projects under comstructon to property, plant and
fquipenent 403,054 AZ 982

The accompanying actes consiitate an integral part of these financiai stataements
5



Ready Mix Concrete and Consfruction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman ~ The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Notes fo the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023

1. General information

- Legal status and activity for parent company and subsidiaries as foflows:

HegistraFion date at 1be
Campety nime Legal siatus Ministry of lodustcy and Trade  Eepiloration No. Min dciiviies

Carestruc |, establish, pwniand manage
proddurtion phims and Irmdiogs will ot

Ready Mix Coacroie and . kind of concrete, kersione, beicks and

i : "5

Construrtinn Supplies Campay 0 R kg company Februany 4,3 w hesetciblock metal forming and lod
all olber actz ekating thetotn ingide
and oukside the kinysslom,

A o Comdrocom Supplv and salc of consbruckion

Equuipavent Supply Company Lomited Habiky couparcy Rebruzry 2, Z6 15883 equipmard and lheer gpare pane

Concate Tetnology Company — Limibed by company Juky 24, B 951 Slanu fac turing consteu dion materiab

Az Chicse Company for %ale and beaschall 2l heavy exipment

Leaschokd arel Sakeof Gguipmed  Limiled [Eabibiny cumypane Soparmber k006 175% amd {heir spare pans

Lnikes] Rusmdr idin Conesele o] o

Coenpracy Privar fiakility rempary Tecamber 1§ . 306 F MUTCIGTURG FeaCy mox concreee
Purcheee of farels , apasiments
coniruk b araf ovsaks withay)

hiasatal for Housing Cotpnng Licm il Eigblity company Jube T2 W17 RN ansurigs inleres]

- The company consists of the following branches and factorivs: Amman -Zasqa - Aqaba - Ramtha -
Sahab Swemeh - Qustal -Shafa Badran -Karak— Potash - Husun -Malrag.
- The company granted according to Development and Special Zone Law the following tax rates:

Agaba branch {Agaba Special Economic Zone) %5

Ma'an branch (Development Zone) %o

=~ The board of dizectors has approved the conselidated financial statement on February 12, 2024 and
it requires the approval of the General Assembly.

2. Basis for preparation of consolidated financial statements and significant accountant policies
2.1 Basis for financial statement preparation
- Consolidated Financial statements preparation framework

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards issued by International Accounting Standard Board,

- Measurement bases used in prevaring the consolidated financial stafements

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for measurement
of cettain itemns at bases other than historical rese.

— Eunctional and presentation currengy
The coneolidated financiad statements have been presented in Jordanian Dinar (JD), which is the
functional currency of the enhity,
2-2 Using of estimates

- When preparing of financial statements, management uses judgments, assessments and
assumptions that affect applying the accounting policies and currying amounts of assels,
abilites, revenue and expenses. Achaal result may differ from these estimates.

— Change in estimates are reviewed on a constant basis and shall be recognized in the period of the
change, and future periods if the change affects them.

~ For example, estunates may be required for doubtful and bad debts, inventory obsolescence,
useful lives of depreciable assets, provisions, and biological assets and any legal cases against the
entity.



Ready Mix Conerete and Construction Supplies
Public Sharehelding Company
Amman = The Hagsheraite Kisgdom of Jordan

Muodes to the consclidated financial statements for the year ended Cracember 31, 2023

2-3 Standards and Inferpretations issued thai became effective

Standard nuniber or
interpretation

Descriplion

Effective date

TFRS {17)

Insurance Contracts

IFRS (17) was issued in May 2017 as veplacerment for [FRS

{4} Insurance Contracts. It requires a current

measurement model where esimates are remeasurad in

each reporting period. Contracts are measured using the

building blocks of:

* discounted probability-weighted cash flows

* an explicit risk adjustment, and

* A contractual service margin (CSh) representing the
uncamed profit of the contract which is recognised as
revenug over the coverage period.

January 1,2023
{deferred Tom
Januwary 1,2021)

Amendments {0 LAS
(1} and IFRS Practice
Statement 2

The amendments to IA5 {1) require entities o disclose
their material rather than their significant accounting
policies,

Jamaary 1, 20633,

Amendments to
IAS (&

The amendment to IAS (8} Accounting Polivies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Ercors

The distinction between accountiag policies and changes
in accounting estimates is important, because changes in
accounting estimates are applied prospectively to future
transactions and other future events, but changes in
accounting policies are gereratly applied retrospectively
to past transactions and other past events as well as the
current period.

january 1, 2023

Amendments to [AS
(12)

The amendments intreduce an exception to the
requirements in the standard that an entity does nok
recognize and does not disclose information about
deferred tax assets and liabilities, an entity applies the
exception and the requirement to disclose that it has
applied the exception immeadiately upon issuance of the
amendments

January 1,2023




Ready Mix Concrete and Construckion Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman ~ The Hashemite Kingdem of fordan

Notas to the consaldated financial statements for the year ended Dacember 31, 2003

Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective

Standard number ar Boseription Effective date

interpretation -

IFRS (16} The amendment clarifies how 4 seller - lessee January 1,2024

Leases subsequently measumes sale and lease back transaction,

Amendments to The amendments to Presentation of Financial Statements January 1, 2024

IAS (1) tlarify that liabilities are classified as either current or {Deferred from
non-current, depending on the rights that existat the end | Januwary 1, 2022).
of the reporting period.

Classification is unaffected by the expeciations of the
entity or events after the reporting date.

Amendmenis 10 IAS 7 | Amendments require entities to provide qualitative and January 1,2024
and [FR57 regarding quantitative information about supplier finance

supplier finance arrangements.

arrangements

2-4Summary of significant accounting policies

— Basis of consalidalion

— The financial statement of parent company consists the financial statement of {Ready Mix
Concrete & Conshuction supplies) and its subsidiary as follows:

Percentage of
Company name owriership
%
Ammar far Construction Equipment Supply Company 00
Concrete Technology Company 100
Arabic Chinese Company for Leasehold and Sale of Equipment 100
Wasafat for Housing Company 100
United Ready Mix Concrete Company 106

— {ontrol iz presumed fo exist when the parent is exposed, or has rights, to variable rebsrns from
its involvement through its power over the investee, in exceptional circumstances, it can be
clearly demonstrated that such ownership does not constitute control.

- Tatergroup balances, transactions, income and expenses shall be eliminated in full.

- Non-conkrolling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not atiributable, directly or
indirectiy, to the parent.

— If a parent loses & cotstrol of a subsidiary, the parent derecognizes the assets and Yabilities of the
subsidiary ard non-controlling interests and other equities, recognize any profit ot Yoss resulted
Eromy logs of centrol in the statement of comprehensive income, recognize any investment
retained after loss of control at its fair value.

- Financial instraments

Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one enkity and financial
Liability or equity inslrument of another entity.



Ready Mix Cancrete and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman — The Hashemite Kingdom of Jardan

MNokes to the consolidated financial stateraents for the vear ended December 31, 2023

- Financial assets

- A financial asset is any asset that is:

(a) Cash;

(b} An equity instrument of another entity;

(¢} A contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset from another entity, or to
exchange finrancial assets or financial labilities with another entity under conditions that
are potentially favorable to the entity.

{d} A contract that will or may be settled in the entity’s own equity instruments.

- Financial assels are initially measured at fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, ransaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset, but for financial assets ab fair vakue through profit or loss, transaction
costs are recognized in profit or loss.

« Financial assets are classified to three categories as follows:

~  Amortized cost.

- Fair value through other comprehensive income,

- Fair value thwough profit or luss.

- A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

(a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in ordar ko
coilect contractual cash flows,

{b} The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely paymenis of principal and tnterest on the principal amount outstanding,

— Financial assets are measured at falr value through other comprehensive incame if both of the
following cenditions are met:
- The fipancial essets is held within a business model whose objective is to hold firancial
assels in crder to collect contractual cash flows,
- The contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interests on that principal amount outstanding.

— All other financial assets {excluding financial assets at amoctized cost or at fair value though
other comprehensive income) are subsequently measured at fair value in profit or kosses.

— On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not keld for trading, the entity may
urevocably elect to prasent subsequent changes in the investments fair value in other
comprehensive income.



Keady Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Public Sharsholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Natzs ko the consolidated financial slatements for the year ended December 31, 2023

Subsequent measurement of Financial assefs

Subsequently financial assets are measured as follows:

Financial assets Subsequerst measurement

Are subsequently measored at fair value
Financial assets at fair value

through profit or nse net gains or losses, including interests revenues or

dividends, are recognized in profit o loss

Are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
effective interests method.

= Amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses.

- [nterests income, gain and Ioss of forcign exchange
and impairment loss are recognized in profit ot loss.

- Gain and loss from disposal are recognized in profit
ot loss.

Are subsequently measured at fair value

Financial asserts at amoartizaed
COst

~ Interests income is calculated using effective interests
method, gains and tosses from foreign exchange,

[ebts instraments at thejr value impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.

_thruugh other comprehensive - Other net gains ot losses are recognized in other

meeme comprehensive income.

= On derecognition accumulated gains and losses in
other comprehensive income are reclassified into
profit or loss.

Are subsequently measured at fair value

- Dividencs are recognized as income in profit or loss,
Equity instruments at fair value unless Hhe dividends clearly represent a recovery of
through other comprehensive part of investment ¢gst,

ncome - Othier net gains and losses are recagnized in other
comprehensive income {OCT) and are naver
rerlaesified from equity ko profit or foxs.

Elerecognition of financizl assels

Derecognition of financial assets {or a part of a group of similar financial assets) when:

= The confractual rights to the cash flow from the financial assets expire, or
— It transfers the contractual tights 1o receive the cash flows of the financial assets or assume a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows entirely to a third party.
Financial liabilifies
— A financial liability is any liability that is:

(a} A contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to ansther entity, or to
exchange financial assets or financial labilities with another entity under conditions that
are potentially unfavorable to the enbiby; or

() A contact that will or may be settled in the entity’s own equity instrumants.

— Financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value less transaction costs, directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of those iabilities, except for the financial liabilities
classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially measured at fair value.
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Ready Mix Concrete and Consiructbon Supplies
Public Shareheldmg Company _
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Nates to the consolidated financial skatements for the year ended Decomber 31, 2023

~ Alter initial vecogrition, the entity measures all financial Habilities at amottized cost using the
effextive interest method, except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
which are measured at falr value and other determined financial liabilities which are not
measured wnder amortized cost method. Financial liabiities at fair vaiue through profit or
loss are stated at fair value, with any resulting gain or loss from change in fair value is
recogmized through profit or loss.

Trade payables and accreals

Trade payables and accruals are liabilities to pay for goods or services that have been received or
supplied and have been either invoiced or formally agreed with the suppliers or not.

Offgetting financial instrements

A financial asset and a financial lialiility are offset and the net amount presented in the statement
of financial position when, and only when, an entity currently has a legally enforceable right to
set otf amounts and intends either to settle in a net basis, or through realize the asset and sette
the Lability simuitanecusly.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand, current accounts and short berm deposils at banks with a maturity
date of three months ot less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,

Trade receivables

- Trade receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not queted in an active arket.

- Trade receivables are stated at invoices amount net of allowance for expected credit Fosses
which represents the collective impairment of receivables,

Investments in associates

- Ap associate is an entity over which the investor has significant influence and that is neither a
subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control ot foint control
over those policies, if the entity holds 20 percent or more of the voting power of the investoe,
it i3 presumed that the entity has signified influence.

- The entity’s investment in its associate is accounted for under the equity method of
accounting, Under the equity method, the investment in an associate is initially recognized at
cost and the carrying amount is increased or decreased ko racognize the investor's sharg of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The investor’ share of the profit or
loss of the investee is recognized in the investor’s profit or loss. Distributions received from an
mvestee reduce the carrying amount ¢f the investment.

— The inwestor’s share of other comprehensive income of the investar changes is recognized in
other comprehensive income of the entity.

- Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the investor's share of the net fir value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities is recognized as goodwill The goodwill is included in the
carrying amount of the investment and is not assessed, annually, for inpairment separately.
Any excess of the investor's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
aver the eost of acguisition is recognized as income.

- Fimancial statement of the associate are prepared for the same date as the financial staternents
of the entity. And when necessary the accounting policies of the associate are amended to
comply with the accounting policies of the enbity.

=~ After applying the equity method, the entity determine, if necessary, to recognize impairenent
lesses on its investments in associates, and determine at the date of the financial shabement
that the investment in associate is impaired, and if so, the entity calculate the Impairment
amount as the difference between the recoverable amount and the carrying amount which is
recognized as a loss in the income stabemeant.

11



Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies

Public Shareholding Company
Arman - The Hashemile Kingdam of fordan

Motes 10 the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2073

— When significant influence loss of the associate accur, the entity shall measure the retained
interest at fair value, and recognize the difference between the carrying amount of the
investment and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from dmpnsmg in the
statement of income.

- Intzz-entity profit and 1oss transactions are eliminated to Hie extent of the investor's interest in
the relevant associate.

Impairment of financial assets

- At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortzed
cost and debt securities at FVTOCT are credit - impaired. A financial asset is “credit impaired”
when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assels have occurred.

- The entity recognizers loss allowance for expacted credit loss [ECL) on;

- Financial assets measured at amartized cost.
- Debt investmenis measured at FVOCE,
—Contract assets.

- The entity measures ioss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

- Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets are always measured at an amount
exyual bo lifetime ECLs.

- When determining whether the credit risk of & financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Entity considers reasonable and
supporfable informaton that is relevant and available without undue cost or effoct based in
the entitys historical experience and forward looking information.

= The entity considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- The client is uniikely to pay its credit obligations to the entity in full, without recourse by the
entity to actions such as realizing security {if any); or
= The financial asset is more than 365 days past due,

- Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross
careying arnount of the assets.

— A financial assets is written of when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows. The entity write of the gross carrying amount of the financial asset is
in case of, liquidation, bankruptcy or isspance of a court ruling to reject the claim for financiai
asset.

Inventories

— Inventories are measured af the lower of cost and nzt realizable value.

- Inventory costs comprise all costs of purchase, costs of corversion and other costs incurrad in
bringing the inventories to their present Jocation and condition.

- Net realizable value is the estimabed selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

- The cost of inventory is assigned by using the weighted-average cost formula,

Property, plants and equipment
— Property, plant and equipment are initially rerognized at their cost being their purchase price
plus any other costs directly atiributable ko bringing the assels to the locstion and condition
necessary for them to be capable of operafing in the manner intended by management.
- After initial recopnition, the preperty, plant and equipment are carried, in the statement of
financial position, at their cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment.



Beady Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Pablic Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom aof Jordan

Motes te the consalidated financial statensgnts for the year ended December 31, 2023

~The depreriation charge for each period is recognized as expense. Depreciation is calculated
0n a straight line basis, which reflects the paltern in which the asset’s futre economic benefits
are expected to be consumed over the estimated useful fife of the assets using the Following

rates:
Category 2023
%o
Buiidings & construction 25
Vahicles & pumps 513
Bevices, equipment, tools, generators,
water tanks and wells 5.7
Machines & eguipment 5-13
Decoralton & lease nprovements 315
Bulldozers & forklifts 57
Furnitire & office equipment 52
Software & computers 5-25

— The estimated useful tives are reviewed at each year-end, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

* = The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in the circumstances indicale the carrying value may not be recoverable. If
any such indication of impairment exists, impairments losses are calculated in accordance
with impairment of assets policy.

— On the subsequent derecognition (sale or retirement) of the property, plants and equipment,
the resulting gain or loss, being the difference between the net disposal proceed, if any, and
the ceerying amount, is included in profit or loss.

— Amount paid to build up property and equipment is initially carried [0 projects under
construction account When the project becomes ready for use, it will be transferred to
property and equipment caption.

Investinent property

— Invesktment preperty is property (land or building- or part of & building- or both):
— Held by the entity to earn rentals,
— For capital appreciation, or both, rather than for use in production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes, or for sale in the ordinary corrse of business.

— Investment property is measured inikinlly at its cost, inchiding transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried, in the statement of finencial position,
at its cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment. Land is not
depraciated.

- Buildings depreciation charge for each period is recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income. Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis, which reflects the
pattern in which the buildings' future economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the
entity over their estimated useful life of 25 years.

~ The estimated useful lives are reviewed at each year-end, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospectve bhasts.

- The carrying values of investeents property are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in thw circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. IF any such
indication of impairment exists, tmpairments losses are calcubated in accordance with
mnpairment of assets policy.
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Ready Mix Concrete and Corstracion Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman « Tha Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Notes to the consolidated financial statemesnts for the year ended December 31, 2023

— Un the subsequent derecognition {sale or retirement) of the investment property, the resulting
gam or loss, being the difference hetween the net disposal proceed; if any, and the carrying
amount, is included in profit or loss.

Empairment of non-financial assets

« At each statement of financial position date, management reviews the careying amounts of its
non-financial assets {property, plant and equipment and investment property) to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have been impaired.

- if any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset @s estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any, being the amount by which the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverabie amount is the higher of
assel's fair vatue less costs to sel! and the value in use. The asset's fair value is the amount for
which that asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable, willing parties in arm's leagth
transaction. The value in use is the present value of fhe future cash Fows expected to be
derived from the asget

~ For the purpose of impairment valuation, assets are grouped at the lower level that have cash
flow independently (cash generating unit), previous impairment for norvfinancial assets
(excleding goodwill) is reviewed for the possibility of reversal af the date of the financial
statements.

= Animpairment toss is rerognized immediately as loss.

— Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but the increased carrying amount
due to reversal should not be more than what the depreciated historical cost wouid have been
tf the impairment had not been recognized in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recagnized immediately as income.

Frovisions

- Provisions are present obligations {legal or constructive) resulted from past events, the
settlement of the obligations is probable and the amount of those obiigahions can be estimated
reliably. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure
required 1o settle the present obligation at the statement of financial position date.

~ Provisions reviewed and adjusted at each statement of financial pasition. date. If outflows, to
settle the provisions, are no longer probable, reverse of the provision is recarded as income.

— If the entity expected to be reimbursed for a part or full provision, the reimbirsement shall be
recognized within assets, when it is virtually certain and its value can be measured. reliably,

= In the statement of comprehensive income, the expense relating to a provision may be
presented net of the amount recognized for reimbursement

~ Where the effect of the ime value of money is material, provisions are discounted by using a
carsently pre-tax discount rate that reflect the risks specific to the liability, when using
discount any increase in provision is recognized as a financial cost ovar time.

Related parties

- Transactions with related parties represent transfer of resources, services, or obligations _
between refated parties.
— Terms and conditions relating to related party transactions are approved by management.

End of service indemaity

Indemnity is provided for in accordance with Jordanian Labor Eaws and Regulations.
Earnings per share

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit or loss, attributable to ordinary sharcholders,
by the weighted average numbe: of ordinacy shares cutstanding duzing the year.



Ready Mix Coacrete and Consteuction Supplies
Fublic Shareholding Company
Amman = The Hagherite Kingdom of Jordan

NMotes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 3%, M1

Revenue recognition

- The entity recogrize revenue from saie of good and rendering of service when control is
trapsferred to the customer.

- Revenues are recognized based on considerabion specified in contract with customer thai
expected to be received excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

- Revenue is reduced for amount of any kade discounts and volume rebates aliowed by the
eniky.

Sale of ready mix concrete

The company sells ready mix concrete to customers through its own sales outlets. Revenue is
recognized at the transfer of control which represent the delivery of ready concrete (o customers at
their designated locations and obtain approved receipt voucher from them and the issuance of the
inveice.

Dividend and interest revenue

- Bividend revenue from investments is recognized when the shareholder’s right to receive
paywent is established.

— Interest revenue is accrued en a Hime basis, by reference ko the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable,

Lease contracts

The entity assesses at the tommencement date of the lease agreement whether the contract is a
lease or includes a lease agreement. And if the contract is in whole or in part trarsfer the right o
contrel the use of a specific asset from one party to another for a specified pericd of Bme in
exchange for a consideration, the entity recognizes the right-of- use assets and lease liability with
the exception of low value and for short term leases {i.c. those with a lease term of 12 months or
less) in which the entity recognizes the lease payments as operating expenses on either a straight-
line basis over the lease term or another systematic basis is more representative of the time period
ta depreciate the econemic benefits of the leased assets.

The entity as z lessee

Leases are classified as finance feases when the terms of the contract transfer all risks and benefits
of ownership to the lessee. The other types of rental contracts are classified as operating contracts.
Contracts are classified as starting the rental conlract

Lease mcome from operafing lease is recognized in income on a straight-line basis over the term of
the refevart Jease. Initial direct costs incurred by the entity in negotiating and arrangivg an
operating lease are added to the carrying value of the leased asset and recognized as an expense
aver the lease term on the same basis as the lease income. Assets leased under operating leases are
depreciated based on the same depreciation policy adoptad by the enbity for similar assets.

Borrowing costs

~ Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.
— Borrowing cosis are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Income tax

Income tax is calculaked in accordance with Jordanjan [aws and regulations.
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Keady Mix Conorete and Construction Supplies
ablit Sharehodding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Nates to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023

Foreign currencles

— In preparing the financial statements, transactions m ¢urrencies other than the Funclional
currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

— At each statement of financial pesition date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retransiated at the rates prevailing at the statement date {(closing rate). Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are tanslated using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary iterns that are measured at fair value
in foreign cutrency are translated wsing the exchange rates at the date when the fair vaize was
determined,

~ Exchange differences arising on the setement of monetary items or on translating monetary
items at rates different from those at which they were translated oo initial 1ecognition during
the period or in previous financial statements shal) be recognized in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise.

Contingent liabilitics

- Contingent liabilities are possible obligations depending an whether some uncerfain fuiure
events occur, or they are present gbligations but payments are not probable or the amounts
cannot be measured reliably.

— Contingent liabilities are not recognired in the financial statements.
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Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company

Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

MNotes to the financial statement For the year ended December 31, 2023

(") Included in the lands mentioned above a Tand for value of 1) 218,633 with the right of disposition
is prohibited, also, there are lands with & bool value of D 1,167,793, and buildings with a net
book value of JD 1,167,163 mortgaged in faver of Caire Amman Bank in exchange for a loan
granted to the company, as mentioned in Note Ne. {(17), where estimated value of the lands and

the building on which i i located according to the estimation repart of Cairo Amiman Bank
amwounted to JTt 5,505,006.

**} Dapreciation expense was distributed at the statement of comprehensive income as follows:
P P

2023 2022

m m
Many fac htring expenses 1314,658 1,200,074
Administrative expenses 51,725 14,522
Tatal 1,366,391 1,249,9%
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Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Fublic Shareholding Company
Ammat: - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Notes to the financial statenent for the year ended December 31, 2023

(*) Movement of investment through the year was a5 follows:

2023 M2
b (1]

Balance - beginning of yeat 11,394,158 11,040,494
Distributed cach dividends (374,242 £265,003
Share of results of assoclates 1,072,883 F17467
Share of change in fair valua of investments in
financial assets throngh cther comprehensive income
-Associates 173,354 (26.290)
Closing the excess of the investment valuation in the
receivable of Jerusalem Croshers and Quarrying
company 582 -
T pairment 1oases of investment in agsotiates {66,922 {62,420}
Balance - end of year 12,208,263 15,394,158

{*"} According to Board of Directors Decision No. (2}, held on April 20, 2023, it was decided to fully
impaire the enbire investment in the International Cards Company and the debt owed within two
years starting from 2023.

{™**) The foliowing are summary of information about associate companies:

Price of shase an
Company 23me December 1, 12 Tutl aets Tkl Lsbies Resmt Poefib Lo
0. D o m p

Masalt lor Specilined Trmspart 5 4 15 LR L BB |34
A e Ceme Frodick . LRE 1L Mo WALl By
Al Roucy i Conorste Copany 7 6T I 1738 ) 116305
Inteenabiong] Brcherage & Firancia Markew Co (™) 4

tntiCar Crpay (4 ] A

Jerusaiém Crushersanf Cranying LLC {lnkised



Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplias
Peblic Sharehotding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Motes to the Financial statement for the year ended December 38, 2023

(****) The summarized information was not disclosed to both International Brokerage and Financial
Markets CO and International Cards Company .
(***) Among the investments, there are 50,000 shares in associate companies with a market value of jD
26,800 as of December 31, 2023 resetved according to the instructions of the Securities exchange
Commission for membership in the boards of directors of these companies,

5. Investments in financial assels at fair value through other comprehensive income

2023 X1

b b
Balance - beginning of year 6,836,190 6,836,190
Balance - end of year 5,836,190 6,536,1%

("} The above mentioned item represents %6.89 of Qutraneh Cement Company capital pledged for Arab
Cement Company - Saudi Shareholding Company.
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Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Sapplies
Public Sharehalding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Noetes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended Décember 31, 2023

7. Imcomae tax

A. Income tax provision

2023 2022

D b
Balance - beginning of year 26,548 33,12
Provided during the year-subsidiary 101,522 18,587
Provided during the year ' 659,931
Provided during the year-Agaba branch 9,505 5625
Advance payments an Income fax account (2.170) {2.275)
Paid doring the year {63,936} (34.596)
Amartizahon for defrred tax assets {305,835 -
Balance - end of year 227 965 28,548

- The surplus (expense) income tax shown in the statement of comprehensive income is as follows:

2023 22
D D
Deferred tax assels - 665,695
[ncome tax - Aqaba branch and development zenes {2,905} (8.629)
Ircotme tax for the year {659,931} {151,867}
Income kax - subsidiaries {10%,522) {18,582}
(Expense) surplus income tax foc the year {F71,258) 486,621
e AT, S
B. Deferred tax assets
23
Balance of accumuladed acowreubated and
and asceptabla taxable acceplable taxable Tax azgets at
losses at (he baginning Released losses #theendof  the spd ofihe
of the year Taxassels  amouats Ihe year year
Iriclnded accounts D o D [}
Accumnlated
accepiable laxable
Insges 2379178 o 83 {2.529,178¢ - .
2
Balance of
Balapce of accumulated accuermulated and
and acceptable taxzble acceptable taxable Tax asaets at
|osses al the beginning Releaged lossesat theend of  the end of the
of the year Tax 293ets  amonnts the year year
Included accounts 1D [13] 1o i)
Accummalated
acceptable taxable
kosses 3328 478 653,695 799,37} L3757 M523

Deferred tax assets were calculated at a rate of 19% and a national contribution of 1% as of
December 31, 2023, according to the applicable corporate income tax rate.
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Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman — The Hashemite Kingdom of fordan

Notes to the consolidated financizl statements for the year ended Decemnber 31, 2023

- Ready Mix Concrete & Construetion Supplies Co

— The tax status of the company has been settled untit the year of 202{ the Eax return for year 2021
was submitted during the legal period, and the tax consultant believes that the provision is
sufficient,

= The sales tax returns have been audited and accepted until 12-2021 and 1+ 2022, Subsequent
returns were submitted until the Iast tax period 10,11- 2023 within the legal period, and they
have not been audited o date.

— Developmental zones

- The tax status of the company has been settled until the year of 2021 the tax reburn for year 2022
was submitted during the legal period, and tax avdit was carried out by the tax
Department,and ne report has been issued to date,

— The sales tax returns were audiled and accepted unbil the period 12-2001 and 1-2022, and the
audit report has not been issued to date. The returny were submitied for the subsequent tax
periods until the last tax period 10 and 11-2023 within the legal period and have not been
audited to date

— Agnaba branch

—The tax statug for the year 2022 was settied and the tax returns foc the years until August, 2023
submitied within the legal perigd.
— Arabic Chinese Company for Leasehold and 5ale of Equipment

A final settlement was reached between the company and the Income and Sales Tax Department
for the year 201¥ and the tax refurn was submitted to income tax department for year 2019,
2120,202] and 2022 within the legal period.

- Amman far Constenction Eguipment Supply Company

4 final setttement has been reached with the Income and Sales Tax Department up to year 2020,
tax return for year 2021 submitted with in legal period and in the opinion of the tax consultant the
provision is sufficient

~ Concrete Technology Company
A final settlement was reached between the company and the lncome and Sales Tax Department
for the year 2019, and no final settlement was reached with the Income and Sales Tax Department
up to year 2020,2021 and 2022, noting that the tax return was submitted within the legal period,
anxd the tax consultant believes that the provision is sufficient.

~ United Ready Mix Concrete Compan
A final seitlement was reached between the company and the Income and Sales Tax Department
until the of year 2020 noting that the tax relrm was submitted for a year 2021 within the legal
period, and the tax consultant believes that the provision is sufficient.

- Masafat for Housing Company

A {inal settlement was reached between the company and the Income and Sales Tax Department
up to year 2019, and the tax return was submitted for year 2020 within the legal period , and The
Income Tax Department has not reviewad it to date, and the income mx return for the year 2021
ras been accepted within the sampling system



Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Suppies
fublic Shareholding Company
Amman ~ The Hashemite Kingdom of fordan

Motes to the consolidated financial statemernts for the year ended December 31, 2023

8 [Inventory

2023 22

L2 o
Epare paris 570,217 620,21
Eaw material 724,490 153
Finish goods - subsidiary 133,597 135.006
Latters of credit & goods in transit 166,542 89,19
Less: Slow moving imventory provision %) {355,402) (335,402)
et 1,259,944 1412427

{*) The movement of provision during the year is as fallows:

2023 2022

jD D
Balance - beginning of year 355,402 366,354
Recovery of & provisiton - {11,432}
Balance - end of year 355402 335,402

9. Investments in Financial assets at Fair value through profit or foss

1023 2023

j[3] D
Balence - beginning of year 122,631 150,591
Sale and purchase during tha year, net 34,730 -
Change in fair value A k) (27,560
Balanre - end of year 277513 122,631




Ready Mix Conerete and Consituction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman ~ The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

WMotes o the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023

10. BRelated parties

- Related parties wansaction consist of transaction with major sharcholders and companies which the
major shareholders have contzol over them. Transaction with related parties are trading in nature.

Due from related party represent following:

2023 w2
) o
Asgsaz for Conceste Products 425 519 504 465
Internatinnat Cards Company 36798 37109
Masatat for Car Leasing H.739 19,727
zrusalem Crushers and Quarrying LEC 7,581 -
International Brokerage & Financial Markets Ca | 5,254 4,148
Assas Modern Transportabian Company 120 -
Al-Quds Ready Mix Suppties - 36,519
Saving fund bor the employees of the Ready Mix
Concrete and Construction Supplies Company - 22003
Less: Expected credit losses provision (41.204) -
Total 452 807 624,961
~ Checks on hand - related parties consist of the following:
2023 2022
10 1o
AbQuds Ready Mix Supplies - & 000
Asas Modern Transportation Conipany 20,000
Total - 116,000
-
— Related parties payables represent tha following:
2023 Az
o j0
Masalat for Speciatized Transport 1,698,925 2,337,292
The Fund Company for Housing 1,428,903 1,138,171
Catrana Cement Company 657,294 1,812,237
Al quds for Ready Mix concrete Co. 285,530 -
Jordanian Vehicle Tracking 558 -
Al Quds Crashers and Quarrying 52,388
Tetal 4071214 5,240,040




Ready Mix Concrete and Constenction Supplies
Public Sharehoiding Company
Amman « The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Nates to the consolidated Financial statements For the year ended December 31, 2023

- Deferred checks - related parties consist of the following

2023 022

e i
(Jatrana Cemert Company 5,322,539 5844607
-M'asa fat for Specialized Transport 490,000 £36,000
The Fund Company for Housing 121,383 217,073
Assas for Concrete Products - 6000
Jerdarian Vehicle Tracking . 1033
Tota! 553300 6,954,723

- Major ransaction with assoctates stated in the statement of comprehensive income were as faliows:

2023 2022

[h JI
Purchases ' 3,335,220 2,341 577
Ready mix concrese sales 1,043,448 632,909
teal estate rental 21,900 23,445
Others 19,865 12182
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Ready Mix Conarete and Construction Supplies

Publi¢ Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of [ordan

MNates 10 the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023

11. Accounts receivable and other debit balancas

Letter of credit and guarantees deposit
Refundable deposits

Prepaid expensas

Employee receivables

Prepayments on income and sales tax
Checks under cellection

Pety cash a2nd others

Social security work injury claims
[ncome tax depasit - licenses and imports

Tatal

12, Trade receivable

Trade receivables (*}

Less: Expected ceedit losses allowance {)
Net

(*) Receivables aging based on contracts with customers date are as following:

From 1 10 60 days
From 61 to 120 days
From 121 40 180 days
From 131 to 365 days
More than 367 days
Total

(™) Allowance for expected credit losses movement during the year:

Balance - baginning of year
Pravided during the year

[rcurred losses

Balance - end of year

2023 2022
Jin) D
734,890 438 349
327,116 209,577
107 804 138,02%
72,920 58,193
69,163 48,240
161243 -
13,723 16,802
7,577 10,903
227 33,642
1,359,340 1,007,629
2023 2022
HY D
8,795,430 9,507 475
{4,328 409) (4,003 417)
4,467,021 5,784,058
o
2023 2022
Jo o
4,590,669 5,283,699
104,208 410.1A
135,503 122415
131,563 190,291
3,743,487 3,800,654
8795430 9,807 475
s i
2023 b s
m D
& 07,437 3,898,528
319,940 150,087
(14,948) {55,198
4,378,409 4423417




Ready Mix Conerete and Constrection Supplies
Public Sharsholding Company
Amman ~ The Haghemite Kingdowm of Jerdan

MNotes to the cansalidated financial statements For the year ended December 31, 2023

13. Statutory reserve .
Fublic Sharcholding Company {(Parent]

Stahutory reserve is allocated accerding to the Jordanian Companies Law by deducting 10% of the
annual net profit until the reserve equals ene quarier of the Company's subscribed capital. However,
the Company may, with the approval of the General Assembly, continue to deduct this annval ratio
until this reserve equals the subscribed capital of the Company in full Such reserve is not available for
dividends distribution,

For the general assembly after exhausting other reserves to decide in am extraordinary meeting to
quench its losses from the accumulated amounts in statuary reserve, and to rebuild it in accordance
with the provisions of the law.

Limited Liability Company [Subsidiary)

Stakutory reserve is allocated according to the jordanian Companies Law by deducting 10% of the
annual net profit until the reserve equals of the Company’s subscribed capital. Such eserve is not
available for dividends distribution.

For the general assembly after exbausting other reserves fo decide in an extraordinary meeting to
quench its losses from the accumulated amounts in stabuary reserve, and to rebuild it in accordance
with the provisions of the faw.

Private Shareholding Company (Subsidia

Statutory reserve is allocated according to the Jordanian Companies Law by deducting 10% of the
annwal net profit until the reserve equals one quarter of the Company's subscribed eapital. Such
reserve is not available for dividends distribution.

For the general assembly after exhausting other reserves to decide in an extraordinary meebing to
quench its losses from the accumulated amounts in statuary reserve, and fo rebuild it in accordance
with the provisions of the law.

14. Voluntary reserve
This reserve is determined in accordance with the Jordanian Companies Law by aliocating not mote
than 20% annually of the profit to this reserve.

15. Other credit balances

2023 /il

P 10
Rewards provision {*} 625 413 AB2475
Sharchoiders deposits 251,963 20 622
Unezrmed rent 207 409 161,804
Accrued expenses 195, 5456 207 4
Employee vacation provision (*) 142,752 110,707
Potential lawsuils provision (™) 153207 16,249
End of service indomaity  provision () 124,765 41,765
Social securly deposils 48,163 47,934
Employees Saviags Bund B4,267 5001
Sales tax deposits 25,022 431,505
Mational contribution deposits[*) 15,449 2650
Social golidarity fund 4.44% -
Employees incorme i deposits 2,696 11,301
Employees payable 781 a6
Total LES2.604 1,674,452
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Ready Mix Concrele and Constraction Supplies
Public Shamhn-lding Cﬂ-mpan}!
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Motes to the consolidated financial statemaents Kor the year ended December 51, 2023

i*} Reward provision

Balance - beginning of year
Provided during the year
Paid during the year
Balanee - €nd of year

(**) Employee vacation provision

Balance - beginning of year
Provided during the year
Paid during the year
Ralance - end of year

{***) Fotential Jawsuits provision

Balance - beginning of year
Provided during the year
Paid during the year
Balance - end of year

{(****) End of service indemnity provision

Balance - beginning of vear
Provided during the year
Paid during the year
Balance - end of year

93 2022
1B M
382,475 80510
600,600 382475
(357,062} (80,510}
625,413 332,475
2023 3022
JD I[s]
110,707 132,703
129076 40,005
(57,031) (61,906}
182,752 110,707
123 2022
D JD
46,249 83,324
106,958
- (37,075)
153,207 36,249
2023 2022
ID Hy,
41,765 83,93
115421 £1458
27,421 (83,656}
129,765 1,765
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Ready Mix Concrete and Consfruclion Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jocdan

Notes to the consolidated financial statements For the year ended December 31, 2023

(*****} National contyibution depasits

2023 a2

8 o
takarce - beginning of year 2,654 1,708
Provided during the year-subsidary 5,243 L
Frovided during the year 1090 9,718
Paid during the year (2.518) {701}
Balance - end of year 15469 7654

16. Trade payables

17,

Trade payables concentrate in four receivables comprising 39% of tofal payables.

Loans
B il
Cutrentportion  Nen-cartenf portion Total fokal
o [ JIE; iy
Cairo Amaan Pank- parent (4 00,800 1,549.9% 2,149,9%% 2357533
Arab Bank Loan [*)- subsidiary 273,000 210,052 485,052 150,000
Capital Bank Loan {**) - subsidiary 13237 %.285 MIESY M557
Cairo Amman Dank [*) -
subsidiary B 91,3 175, i 108,499
Arab Bank [oag- parent - - - 2200000
Tokal 1,112,069 1941634 363,73 139137
[ o — ]

(*} The lcan mentioned is granted by the Cario Bank to the Parent Company in the amount of JD
3,000,000 at an interest rate of 4% and is repayable under 60 equal monthly installments, each
installment is JI 50,000 and the first installment is due on January 31, 2022. Where it's guarantead
by a real estate mortgage on the company's fands and buildings, with a net book valie of JD
2,334,956, as mentioned in note Ne. {3},

("} The loan mentioned above is granted by the Cairo Bank to the Concrete Technology company
(subsidiacy) for an amount of JD 900,000 at an interest rate of 4%. It is repayable on a 36 equal
installments. Each instaliment is equal JD 25,000 and these facilities are granted with a guarantee
of the owner.

{***) The above foan i3 granted by the Capital Bank to the United Ready Mix Concrete (subsidiary) for
an amnount of [0 250,000 at an interest rate of 2%. It is repayable 36 equal instziiments. Each
installment is JD 6,946 and the first mstallment was due on October 22, 2021 under the personal
guararitee of Mz, Rajaa Xhalil Alami

{*=*} The loan mentioned above is granted by the Cairo Amman Bank to Concrete Technology
Company (Subsidiary) for amount of JD 175,000 at an interest rate of 2%. It is repayable under 23
equal installments, each installment is equal 7,609 and the first installment was due on February
28, 2024 , and these facilities were granted under the personal guarantee of Mr. Rajaa Khalil Alami
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Ready Mix Conerete and Consituction Supplies

Public Sharehofding Company
Anman ~ The Hashemite Kingdam of Jordan

MNotes jo the consolidated financial stafements For the year ended Devember 31, 2023

18. Banks overdrafe

Bank Interest raie 2023 A2z
% D o
Arab bank 8.7 402,251 2102207
Cairo Amman Bank - parent 875 5,556 1,231,103
Cairo Amman Bank - subsidiary 375 136,165 158677
Egyphian Arah Land Bank 11 - 678 6B
Arab Banking Corporation il - 274041
Total 885,572 4,440,636
9. Cost of sale

2023 20122

D o
Raw material used in production 33,201,756 27,624,350
Manufachuring cost (%) 9,142,665 831,374

Total 42,444 421 35,953,724
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Ready Mix Concrele and Constrisction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemita Kingdom of fordan

MWotes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023

{*} Manufachering cost consist of the following:

223 2022
) 1]
Galavies. wages and related benefits 2,015,572 1.H% 615
il Fuel and pumps vent L7020 1767243
Mameenanee and vehicle expenses 1,561,255 1,339,140
D precalion 1314665 1,200,074
Cwertime anid employees vacabon 943,244 $08.208
Employers rewards 366,160 254,02
Social security 256,415 235,853
Water and eleciriciy 200008 162,505
[neurances and licease 199,578 92,755
[Lonts 7a.162 HLR
Ermployees savings fand 70,400 44,976
Subscriplions, fecs and stamps 69,344 01653
Security a5.747 65,232
Travel and trapsporlalion 20,425 27,353
Chote and postal el 25,82
General safely and work: infury 273306 11,265
Transportation aml storape expenses 26,550 17,666
Information technology 26,445 5,371
Hospitality 25 807 15,935
Non - refundable cement purchases tax e, o 22929
Wiscellancons 18,793 25,306
Statiopery 13,553 13047
Laboratory tesiy 9,557 9,385
Advertising J.269 3464
Tatal 4.142,665 5,329,374
20, Other revenues, net
2023 =
e D
Rents 363,742 37,919
Others $9,583 154,241
Change in Fair value of financial assets at Eair
value through profit or loss 70,132 (27,9604
Gain from sale of property, plant and equipment 59,509 123,320
Recovery of obselate and slow moving
inventory provision - 11,432
Dividends - T.009%
Net 552,971 597,068
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Ready Mix Concrate and Construction Sopplies
fublic Shareholding Comparty
Amman ~ The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Notes to the consolidated financial staterments for the yedr ended December 31, 2023

21. Administrative , selling and distribution

23 Pl ol
e o

Salaries, wages 4 related benefits (%) 1.195,54% 1,108,163
Expociad credit losses A6, 144 150087
Employers rewards 249,487 174,119
Anrnual vacatoms aflowanee 129,788 461004
Social security 112072 100,513
End of servece indemnity oR,7ED 2513
Mon-deductible tax oD Tee 59,253
Pokental lawsait 854958 -
Travel & teanspodabion B> A23 A1
Insurance &0, 100 BO116
Subscriptions, fees & stamps 74559 9t Ml
Transpartabion allowance of board of direcbors and

auilif, risk and governange commitbose G0, 75,000
Drepreciation of investmont property 56,550 56,551
{eprectation 21,723 19,922
Chvertima 50,147 57,742
Fewards for borad of directars 5,000 S0, 06KD
Profussionat e 47 346 39,00
Employees saving 38414 3824
Elpetricity, water & fuel a5, 787 34,123
[nformation technofogy 35291 0,297
Coflection commissions 2500 17 4598
Hospitality 25,906 29,454
Miscellaneous 60 16,363
Bank fees & svarantce 637 X730
Cleaning & maintenance 13,965 15,542
Rernts 13006 -
Advertising 12,639 13,1940
Stationery & printings 121433 5134
Bonations 1703 16,164
Security arud guaard T I36 7.0e
Vehicles 6,366 6,464
Telecommunication 4322 12,626
Teatning 3,580 2,270
Incurred lassos - )
Total 3,181,830 2519705

() Within salaries, wages and related benefits an amount of [} 477,972 which represent salaries and
benefits for the higher management of company.
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Ready Mix Concete and Construction Supplies
Public Sharcholdiog Company
Amman -~ The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Nates to the consplidated finaneial statemenis For the year ended December 31, 2023

22. Profit per share

24.

2023 022
HY ji
Profit of the year 4,279,018 1,308,954
Weighted average nnmber of shares 25,008,000 5 0 A0
Profit per share 1D 0171 JD ¢72
FART O by
. Contingent liabilities
Values Margins Net
jo D JO
Cuarantees and letter of credit 3.046, 304 {744,890} 3201418

Conbra accounts

As of December 31, 2023 there are drawn checks on Cairo Amwman Bank amounting to J 659306
deposited in the company account at Arab bank.

. Lawsuiks

According to the lawyer letier there are legal cases raised from others against the acomipany amounting
to [0 3,651,650, and there are legal cases raised by the company against others amounting kv iD 115,780
Jthese cases still outstanding in the related courhs, and in the opinion of the tax consultant the recorded
provisions are sufficient.

Risk management

a)

)

Capital risk:

Regularly, the capital struchure is reviewed and the cost of capital and the risks associated with
capital are considered. [n addition, capital & managed propesly to ensure continuing as a going
concern while maximizing the return through the optimization of the debt and equity balance.

Corrency risk:

— Currency risk i the rigk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial insttument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

- The risk arises on certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies, which impases soit of
risk due to fluctuabions inexchiange rates during the year.

— Most of foreign currency transactions are in USD, and JD exchange rale is fixed against USD.

Interest rate risk:

~ Interest rafa risk is the risk that the fair valuz or futuze cash flows of a financia!l instrument will
fluctuate bacause of changes in market interest rates,

~ The risk arises on exposure to a flectuation in market interest rates resulting from borrowings
and depositing in banks.

- The risk is maraged by mairtaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floabing interest rates
balances during the financial year.
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~ The following table shows the sensitivity of profit or loss and equity to changes in interest ratas

paid by the entity on borrewing from the banks:

The effect an
As at December 32, 2023 Change in interest prafit jless)
Y o
Bank facilities and loans b 0.5 + (19,698}

d} Other price rigk:

— Ofher price risk is the risk that the fair value or future ¢ash flows of a financial instrument will

fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than thase arising from interest rate risk ar
currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specfic to Hwe individual linancial
instrument or i issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments fraded in the
market.

The risk arises from investing in aquity investments. Investment impairment loss was calculated
which its market value have declined

The following table shows the sensitivity to profit or loss and equity to the changes in the listed
prices of investments in equity instrumnents, assuming no changes to the rest of other variables:

The effect on profit The effoct on

As a2 December 31, 202 Change in price {Ioss) ownets equity
% o o
[nwestmen in financial assels at fair vatue throwgh
pofit of loss 5 BE75 13,575
Tae effecton profit  The effect on
As at Decembar J1, 3022 Change in price floss) wners equity
% fo 1D

[owestment in financial assets at Jair value thaough
profit or loss 15 6131 §,131

e} Credit rick:

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss Eor the
other party by failing to discharge an obligation.

Regulariy, the credit ratings of debtors and the volume of transactions with those debtors
during the year are monitored.

Ongoing ¢redit evaivation is performed on the financial condition of debtors, also adequate
provisions for doubtful receivables is taken.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements represents the -
maximum exposure to credit risk without taking into account the value of any collateral
cbtained.

£} Liguidily risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk of encountering difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
tinancial liabilities that are settfed by delivering cash or anather financial assets.

Liquidity risk is managed through monitoring cash flows and matching with maturity dates of
the financial assets and liabilities,
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- The following table shaws the maturity dates of financial assets and liabilities as of December 31:

Lass than T year Move than 1 year

Descripkion . 11X} Jxr 202 AT
Financial ssseis: 1D _ o o 1Y
iovvestners in ageotianes - - 12,20, 243 LY, 158
Investencn i Fmancial assets at fair value treagh
ather comprehersive come - - 6,856,190 6536, 190
levvestorait in Fonapcial assels at Gair vadue throwgh
pevsit or oss LA TR 12831 . -
Checks und er collectzon and on hand 8 D3, 454 935,789 el L] 160218
Checks orhand - ridated parties - 110,060 - -
Due borm relufed partics 152807 624,91 - -
Aocoueds rreeivable and other debit halances LIELST3 B354 . .
Teacke recotualbles 4 4pT AN 5,784,056 . -
Curvonn acceents at bk 40816 U508 . .
Total 15,524,718 {7.083375 19,114,453 1549, 566
Flpapeial fiabilities
D o rolated partics 171,14 5,H0 MG - -
Other credit balavces 147514 AT A58 . .
Dederred chacks A7 LGRS - .
Deferred checks - relaled portice 593500 695171 ; .
Trade payables 8600415 TA3R115 . -
Loans _ LU 2403308 LO4LEM 2568,51%
Banks ovendiafi 885,972 L0406 . -
Total I3035,28 3,836,382 1143 T388,519

27. Fair value of financial instruments

- The table below tepresents the fair valus of the financial insbruments using valuation method. there
are different levels as follows:
-~ Levell: listed prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,
- Level 2: inputs rather than prices listed in level T and cbservable for the asset or liability, either
directly {as prices} or indirectly (derived from prices).
~ Level 3 inpuks for the asset or liability is not based on comparable market data that can be
obszerved {nan-observalble npatts).

levels
Asat December 31, 2023 1 2 Total
Financial Aseets D [ JD
Investment in financial axsets at Rir valie theough
profit or loss BT . 277,513
Investment in financial assets a! fair value through
ather comprehensive income - 6,836,190 6536.19%
Tatal _ 17513 6,536,190 7113703

— Book value of financial instrurents is alinest equal to the fair value,
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28, Financial statement for the su]:rsidiary

The conselidated financial statemnent includes the financial statement of the subsidiaries as al
December 31, 2023 az follovws:

Relxioed saniings
Coipuny vame Legat maity Faid inCapiba} Total Assets Totalabiliies  (Accemadited lngses)
B ] o »

Arrarn for Construction Eqeepment Sepply
Company LLC 0 AL e 441
Corwele Technedopy Company L Ll 28058 ES5N B0
Avabic Chiese Campany for Lessehold and Sale of
Eapuiprent LLC [0 2431100 1359 B
Wit Renfe i fic Concrete Ca, ELC B LIOLI% 1239 {130,066
Misatat for Housing Comany e it tibbio 4a%i i

2% Pogsible offects of sconomic fluctuations

As a result of the current globai conflict, where the entity took into account any possible impact of the
current economic fluckuations in the inputs of future macroeconomic factors when determining the
severity and probalbility of econemic scenarios to determine the expected credit losses.

30. Reclassifirakion

2022 balances have been reclagsified to conform to the adopied classification in 2023
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